Asia Resources Holdings Limited

NG RIERER AT

(Stock Code B2 1%5% : 899)

|
' ANNUAL REPORT 2012 &2

* For identification purposes only &5 5l



CORPORATE INFORMATION

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIRECTORS' REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

REEH
EENERERERE
TEEERRSE

ITEBEREREN R RO

BEEgWmE

83 1% B R

REPBIRE

RERaEPR

FERERER

A B HRRME

MiEHE

Contents

H £k

10
18
28
40
43
45
47
49
51

152



orporate Informa
nEIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hau Kong (removed on 9 August 2011)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph
(resigned on 31 May 2012)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Tong Leung Sang
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yiu Fai Ming
(not re-elected on 9 August 2011)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Tse Yuk Kong (retired on 9 August 2011)
Mr. Lum Pak Sum
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
(appointed on 8 November 2011)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Leung Lai Si, Rosena

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

CITIC Bank International Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants
REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 04, 34/F., Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTRARS (IN BERMUDA)

HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited
Bank of Bermuda Building

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.asiaresources899.com
http://www.aplushk.com/clients/0899asiaresources/
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (“Mr. Chim"), aged 42, appointed as
an executive Director on 15 October 2008 and the Chairman of the
Company on 19 December 2008. Mr. Chim holds a Bachelor degree
in Arts from the University of British Columbia in Canada and has
over 10 years of commercial, industrial and investment experiences.

Mr. Chim is also an executive director of Bestway International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 718), which is listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He has been an executive director of Huscoke
Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 704) for the period from
September 2007 to 2 September 2010, Yueshou Environmental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1191) for the period from May 2007
to November 2009, Hengli Properties Development (Group) Limited
(stock code: 169) for the period from June 2007 to December 2008,
Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 761) for the
period from April 2007 to November 2008 and Karce International
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1159) for the period from
August 2007 to April 2009.

Mr. Chim is the son of Mr. Chim Pui Chung, who is the shareholder
of Golden Mount Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Chan Sung Wai (“Mr. Chan"), aged 64, appointed as an
executive Director on 15 October 2008 and the Deputy Chairman
on 16 January 2009. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in trading,
real property and shipping industries. Mr. Chan also has extensive
experience in financial and media business. He has been working
for a number of years in the major media companies in Hong Kong,
and is responsible for covering, editing and writing commentaries.
Mr. Chan is also a chief editor of the petroleum magazine and has
comprehensive knowledge on the media industry in the PRC.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Currently, Mr. Chan is also an executive director of Karce
International Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1159), which
is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has
been an executive director of Energy International Investments
Holdings Limited (stock code: 353) for the period from November
2008 to 12 April 2011 and Grand Field Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 115) for the period from 14 November 2007 to 18 June
2008.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tong Leung Sang (“Mr. Tong”), aged 62, appointed as a non-
executive Director on 19 November 2010. Mr. Tong had over 40
years' extensive experience in the banking, securities and finance
industries. He served Bank of China Group, Hong Kong for over 30
years. He had been an Economic Researcher of the Bank of China
Group from 1970 to 1989 and the Executive Director of BOCI
(known as Bank of China Group before 1998) Securities Limited and
BOCI (known as Bank of China Group before 1998) Commodities
and Futures Limited from 1989 to 2002. He joined Luen Fat
Securities Company Limited in 2003 and became the Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Luen Fat Futures (HK) Limited
since 2009.

Mr. Tong was also an alternate committee member of the Listing
Committee of Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the year of 1996-97,
a committee member of The Hong Kong Stock Brokers Association
for the year of 2001-02, a committee member of the membership
committee of the Hong Kong Securities Institute from 2000-2004
as well as the Chairman of the Hong Kong Securities Professional
Association ("HKSPA") from 1996-2001. He was appointed as the
Permanent Honorable Chairman of the HKSPA since 2004.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Xianlin (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 58, appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 December 2008.
Currently, Mr. Zhang is the executive director of China-No1.com.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology with a Master Degree in Business Administration and
a Doctor Degree in Management. He is a Chinese certified public
accountant and senior accountant. During the period from 1974
to 2007, he served in the senior management positions in China
National Aviation Corporation (Group) Limited and the Civil Aviation
Administration of China. Besides, Mr. Zhang was a General Manager
in China National Aviation Company Limited, a director in Hong
Kong Dragon Airlines Limited, the Chairman of Board of Supervisors
in Air Macau Company Limited and the Chairman of Board of
Supervisors in Air China Limited (stock code: 753). Mr. Zhang has
also been a non-executive director of Cathy Pacific Airways Limited
(stock code: 293) during the period from August 1997 to May 2005.
Mr. Zhang has over 30 years of extensive experience in enterprise

finance and investment management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (“Mr. Lum”), aged 51, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since November 2010.
Mr. Lum holds a master degree in business administration from
the University of Warwick, UK and a LLB (Honor) degree from the
University of Wolverhampton, UK. He is currently a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. Mr. Lum has
over 20 years’ experience in the financial field, the money market
and capital market.

Mr. Lum was an independent non-executive director of Grand Field
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) for the period from July
2004 to May 2008, China Star Film Group Limited (stock code:
8172) for the period from September 2005 to December 2008,
Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8046) for the period
from June 2007 to November 2008 and Energy International
Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353) for the period from
September 2005 to June 2011.

Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of Waytung
Global Group Limited (stock code: 21), Bestway International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 718), Radford Capital Investment
Limited (stock code: 901) and Karce International Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 1159). These companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent director of Asia Green
Agriculture Corporation, a company trading on the Over-The-
Counter Bulletin Board in the United States since September 2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (“Mr. Kwok"), aged 59, appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
8 November 2011. Mr. Kwok is a solicitor and notary and is the
sole proprietor of Messrs. Jesse H.Y. Kwok & Co. with substantial
previous working experiences acting as solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong. He obtained his degrees of Bachelor of
Laws (LLB) and Master of Laws (LLM) in Civil laws from the
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Kwok
was appointed as a Temporary Magistrate between December
1994 and March 1995, and a Temporary Adjudicator of the Small
Claims Tribunal in July 1998. He is also a Panel Arbitrator. He is
also a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law Society
of United Kingdom, Singapore Academy of Law and is one of the

Counsel Members of the Society of Notaries.

Since 25 August 2005, Mr. Kwok has also been an independent
non-executive director of China Infrastructure Investment Limited
(stock code: 600), a company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chao Zhengxiang (“Mr. Chao”), aged 59, joined the Group
in 1997. Currently, he is the director and the general manager of
Siping Ju Neng Medicine Industry Co., Ltd. (FIFEEEZ B R D
A)) . Mr. Chao graduated from Chinese Language and Literature
Department of Siping Normal College. He is a senior economist
and had been recognized as Top Model Worker (452 & EhiE &)
of Siping City. He has over 40 years of extensive experience in

corporate operation and management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chao was the secretary to the party
branch of Siping City Pharmaceutical Factory (PO &L£E[% ) |, the
deputy director of Siping City Light Chemical Bureau ( P4 &8t
T /3), the secretary to the party branch and the director of Siping
City No. 2 Chemical Factory (PUF % —{b T ) , the secretary to
the party committee and the director of Siping City Pharmaceutical
Factory (PUF M & 228K ) , the director of Siping City Kangle
Pharmaceutical Factory (P4 M R4 & 24 ) and the director of

N

Siping City Huatai Pharmaceutical Factory ( 71 T 55 2= &U %55 ) .
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Toni Nurdianto Prabowo (“Mr. Toni Nurdianto”), aged 46,
appointed as Project Manager of PT. Dampar Golden International
(the subsidiary involving in iron sand trading business in Indonesia)
on 14 February 2011 and Director on 18 March 2011. Mr. Toni
Nurdianto holds a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering from
Sepuluh November Institute of Technology Surabaya, Indonesia,
certified as Project Management Professional from Project
Management Institute, and has over 18 years of experiences in
various industries in Indonesia.

Before joining the Group, he was a Project Manager and Manager of
Facilities Operation & Maintenance of INCO Indonesia, Nickel Mine
Company that listed in Indonesia Stock Exchange for the period
from June 2003 to February 2011. He has been Project Management
Development Team Leader for PT. Dok & Perkapalan Kodja Bahari,
the Stated Owned Enterprise of Republic Indonesia for the period
from May 2000 to March 2003, and was a staff for Secretary of The
State Minister of State Owned Enterprises of Republic of Indonesia
for the period from August 1998 to May 2000.

Ms. Mamik Hartini (“Ms. Hartini”), aged 35, graduated
from Satya Widya Tourism High School, in Surabaya, East Java,
Indonesia, was appointed as Office Manager of PT. Dampar Golden
International (the subsidiary involving in iron sand trading business

in Indonesia) on 15 February 2011.

Before joining the Group, Ms. Hartini has been the Sales &
Marketing Manager of PT. Intil and Development Tbk for the
period from March 2007 to February 2011; and as Administration
Assistant of Magnussen Company for the period from May 2006 to
February 2007. She was Assistant Sales Manager of a 4 stars hotel
at Somerset Surabaya Hotel & Serviced Residence, an International
Hotel Chain of The Ascott International for more than seven years
up to May 2006.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERWME

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The
Company regularly reviews the corporate governance procedures
and developments of the Company. The Company applied the
principles and complied with all the code provisions as set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) throughout the year under review, except for the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code which is explained in the

relevant paragraph below.
DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's business strategic decisions and

performances.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises two Executive
Directors, Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky (Chairman) and Mr. Chan Sung
Wai (Deputy Chairman); one Non-executive Director, Mr. Tong Leung
Sang; and three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang
Xianlin, Mr. Lum Pak Sum and Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
persons with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
accounting and appropriate expertise. They provide strong support
towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities
of the Board. Each Independent Non-executive Director gives an
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company and
the Company considers these directors to be independent under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Details of Directors’ attendance records during the year ended

SR E AR E

ARBZFIUIFATEZT RN G HIE L%
BEEMhEXER UYRABEEFERANHE
AL - BEHEZTSERETHEREREME
FRHBAIFF - BB ULIFATESEESE
VYHEBFAARRELER ARBARE
ZEESRELETMARREINMETIEE LA
+o

BEENBE_ZE—_F=-A=+—HILF

31 March 2012 are set out below:

BHEREFBOT

Meetings Attended/Held
HERY BHEERHY

Audit Nomination Remuneration
DIRECTORS 2011 AGM Board  Committee = Committee Committee
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Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky EflwfkaE 11 5/5 0/0 212
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BREEEE 1/1 3/5
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Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph BEMLE n 5/5
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Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse BESEE
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERWME

Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the board of
Directors will meet on other occasions when a board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting. The board of Directors has reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the board
of Directors to the management include the preparation of annual
and interim accounts for board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
board of Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with

relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICE

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and CEO of the Company should be clearly established and set out
in writing. The roles of the chairman and the CEO of the Company
were not separated and were performed by the same individual,
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky throughout the year ended 31 March

2012.

The Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. As such, the Directors consider that
this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Directors and the management of Group and believes
that this structure will enable the Group to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.

2 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
1 Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors of the Company including Independent
Non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of three years. In
addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of
the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, Directors appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next following general
meeting and can be eligible for re-appointment at that time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 November 2011.
It comprises of three Independent Non-executive Directors and the
Chairman of the Board, and is currently chaired by Mr. Kwok Hong

Yee, Jesse.

Its primary objectives include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to became Board members, assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Nomination Committee
has not held any meeting since its establishment.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the code provision B.1.1, the Company should establish a
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. The role and function of the Remuneration
Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management of the Company,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, such as any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to the

board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the
Board.

As at the date of this report, members of the Remuneration
Committee are Mr. Zhang Xianlin (Chairman), Mr. Lum Pak Sum,
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the fiscal

year.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee

include:

1. To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and

senior management;

2. To review the remuneration package and recommend salaries,
bonuses, including the incentive awards for Executive Directors

and senior management; and

3. To ensure no Director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of the appointment letters of the Directors with
reference to the factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the existing terms of the appointment letters of
the Executive and Non-executive Directors, including Independent
Non-executive Directors are fair and reasonable. Details of the
remuneration policy of the Directors are set out on pages 38 and 39
of this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for
the year ended 31 March 2012, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on

the going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of

internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s risk
exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure in

operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets and
identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the present
internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority, a
sound cash management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control and is of the view that the system of internal
control adopted for the year ended 31 March 2012 is sound and is
effective to safeguard the interests of the shareholders’ investment
and the Company’s assets.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. The minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings were kept by the Company
Secretary. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group. The Audit Committee held two meetings
during the fiscal year.
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During the fiscal year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting standards and practices adopted by
the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the interim report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2012,
remuneration paid to the Company’s auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson

under review, the

Impey Cheng, is set out as follows:

Services rendered

&% ERRE

REMBFEERN EZLZEeC HEREEH
REBERM 2 GETENRIEN Ut EZ
NEEE R BERREE (BREAEE 2 F
HRERHE T —F=A=1+—HILHF
BB ZMBmE) ETHR -

%A BN &
R RE-—S——F=A=+—81
FER EAARDRBARGL A
B2 B BT

Fees paid/payable

Frie  BR 7% B/ EAEA
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services % ER 7% 480
Non-audit services (note) IERZBURAS (M1 5E) 100

Note: The audit committee is of the view that the auditors independence
was not affected by the provision of these non-audit related services
during the year ended 31 March 2012.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders through
the Company’s annual report and financial statements, the interim
report, as well as the Annual General Meeting ("AGM"). The AGM
allows the directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website
is maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other
relevant financial and non-financial information electronically on a

timely basis.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the”Group”), and
present herewith to the shareholders of the Group the annual report
and audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

The year under review was the most difficult year the Group ever
witnessed, owing to (1) continuous increase in production cost,
keen competition and significant decline in the selling price of
intravenous fluids resulting in the Group’s gross profit margin from
pharmaceutical operation being further narrowed and the segment
loss being enlarged; (2) substantial decline in the fair value of
Mining Right in Mongolia; (3) impact on the change in mining law
in Indonesia; and (4) the impairment of the outstanding amount of
approximately HK$64 million in relation to the Group's disposal of
30% of the entire issued share capital of Skyyield Holdings Limited.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the turnover of the Group was
mainly generated from its principal business of pharmaceutical
operation, amounting to approximately HK$113.6 million (2011:
HK$157.9 million) and represents a decrease of 28.1% as compared

with last year.

Whilst endeavoring to improve operational efficiency and reduce
costs, we have encountered difficulties in raising the selling price
of its products in order to shift the extra costs to customers. As a
result, and after taking into account of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a loss attributed to the Company's shareholders
of approximately HK$154,276,000 (2011: loss of HK$45,061,000).

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2012 was HK4.03 cents (2011: basic and diluted loss per share of
HK1.39 cents).

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In respect of the intravenous fluids business, the Group completed
the disposal of its Wenzhou factory on 16 May 2011, and realized
a gain on disposal of approximately HK$16.6 million. For the
remaining factory in Siping, the performance was unsatisfactory;
the effect of enhanced production capacity has been mitigated
by adverse industry factors, such as (i) increasingly intensified
competition in pharmaceutical market; (ii) high operating costs,
like raw material and labour costs, selling and distribution costs;
(iii) high financing costs; and (iv) implementation of China’s new
tendering policy for essential drugs nationwide, further squeezing

the pharmaceutical product selling price.

However, with new opportunities for future development of
pharmaceutical enterprises kept rising from the dynamics such as
the promotion of new healthcare reform; high priority and strong
supports to the pharmaceutical industry from the governments;
China’s population aging; increasing demand for healthcare
consumption and coverage of health insurance; higher medical
insurance payment levels and so on, our factory will position itself as
quality enterprises with advantages in brand in order to survive and

profit from the opportunities in pharmaceutical industry.

For the Mongolia Iron Mine business, we have re-engaged Ms. Lee
Yang (our former executive Director who have extensive experience
in resources industry) as Consultant and have engaged a Mongolia
professional firm to prepare feasibility study report and environment
report as a base for the Group to re-consider the overall operating
strategy for the mining business in Mongolia. However, because
of the delay in the business plan and the change in iron price
forecast, a decrease in fair value of Mining Right of HK$66.2 million,
has been recorded in accordance with the valuation report of an

Independent Valuer.

E 3 CI) =

BABRESME AEBEER_ZT—F
ARATNBEKEEERINEE - 3251
& I 5 4916,600,00078 7T o FAPE T 2 82 T R
BEREWTIEE  EREERD WA T
B2 FRTTERETEE  (VERTIHB 2B
FHRME: (S 2z &M A (nRERME
BIRA HERDHEKER) : (imdz
BERA : R(v)FBEE 2B EAREEY
BERRE— P BEERIFEEER-

AT IAHEEN TR S B Em TR 2B E
BENBAXF READZ(: BERY
FEREBERRBEEZREL N BERRE
RKFEEAEBERATE AEEREEZ RKE
RWFEE SARE ZHEKELSE
EmEELZZEELE KMAKELE
YRERTEZHE B &S

REETHEXEMNS  AEEEENEELee
YangZ T (RRARZAEHITEE  BRER
TERBLELER) BER YEZE—H
SHEEQAFNRRAMTERSE RIRRR
EERAAEEENEREHEEER B
BEERB AR -Am BREBTEIT
EREEENES  SURERZ AFERD
66,200,000/ yL 2 AR R B X i B RD 2 (B E R
EFUAARR-

EMETRIZERBR AR
= o

ZEFY

19

53




Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis
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Regarding the iron sand trading business in Indonesia, trial
production commenced in January 2012 using the first batch
of 2 separator machines. Consequently, the initial 5,000MT of
raw materials have already been delivered to the worksite and
screened iron sand was stored in the stockpile at Lumajang. With
trial production already underway, our subsidiary, PT. Dampar
Golden International (“PT. Dampar”), will commence marketing the

processed iron sand to both domestic and overseas customers.

At the same time, we will take this opportunity to further streamline
its production techniques and transport logistics. We shall continue
looking for various methods of enhancing outputs including but
not limited to the possibility of installing additional machines.
PT. Dampar will also commence the planning and installation of
more separator machines in order to increase production. Also, PT.
Dampar has now established its own sample testing laboratory at
its site office, which has greatly enhanced its ability in controlling
quality.

With the full cooperation from the local community, our investment
has directly and indirectly created approximately 70 new jobs. We

will continue to work amicably with the local community.

2 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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In late February 2012, the Group became aware that there is a
change in the Indonesia Mining Law (“Amendments”). Whilst we
are in the progress to ascertain the impact of the new law, including
a meeting with the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources
of Republic of Indonesia ("“MEMR"), we have arranged for the
engagement of a local reputable lawyer to provide a legal opinion
relating to the impact of the new Mining Law. It is preliminarily
advised by the Indonesia legal adviser that the major impact as a
results of Amendments on PT. Dampar is that all the raw mineral
output in the form of ore from the Mining area cannot be directly
exported after 6 May 2012. Under the Amendments, among other
matters, the owners and operators of minerals or coal mines in
Indonesia have to increase the value-added to minerals through
processing and refining before the processed minerals or coal can
be exported. All value-added processing and refining programs
should be finalized before 2014. Further, mine owners can export
all the mineral raw materials (ores) if they have already obtained the
recommendation from MEMR through Director General.

PT. Dampar is now in the process of applying for its own Indonesia’s
mining company operation license and conducting various feasibility
studies with the view of building its own pig-iron smelter to further
enhance the quality of the iron concentrates. Through the mine
owner, PT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera (“PT. Indo”), who wiill
apply for the recommendation from MEMR for exporting all the
minerals (ores) during the grace period.

For the existing operations, we will exercise stringent cost control
and enhance its control over operating expenses and selling costs.
Financially, we will strive to lower the gearing ratio, and maintain
sufficient capital with a healthy financial position, in order to be in a
better position to capture opportunities.
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Apart from consolidating the existing operations, we have actively
explored opportunities for business diversification in order to enlarge
its earning base. We aim at seeking to invest in business with high
growth potential and good returns. Our management, who has
extensive investment experience, will take a prudent approach in
identifying and investing in projects that will be in the interest of the

Company and shareholders as a whole.
DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year (2011: nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Segmental Analysis
Pharmaceutical Operation

The competition of the Pharmaceutical Industry was intensified in
the year under review. The adverse factors of the industry include (1)
very keen competition in the market; (2) the Chinese Government
implemented a new essential drugs tendering policy to the entire
country which further driving down the price of pharmaceutical
products; and (3) the continuous increase in direct production cost

and distribution cost further narrows the profit margin.

22 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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With the disposal of the factory in Wenzhou in May 2011, the
Group recorded a decrease of approximately 28.1% in the revenue
from this segment to approximately HK$113,586,000 as compared
with approximately HK$157,929,000 of last year. With the increase
in cost and decline in selling price, the gross profit for the segment
decreased to approximately HK$24,239,000 (2011:HK$50,296,000).
Gross profit margin decreased to approximately 21.3% (2011:

approximately 31.8%) as compared with last year.

As a result, this segment recorded a loss of approximately
HK$24,316,000 as compared to a loss of approximately
HK$9,974,000 last year.

Looking forward to next year, with disposal of the Wenzhou factory
in May 2011, the Group will focus on improving the product quality
and lowering the production cost of the remaining factory in Siping
in order to enhance the tendering results in the coming future.

Iron Ore Mine Operation

During the year under review, the business plan of Mongolia was
further delayed due to the resignations of key personnel, Mr. Danny
Sun and Ms. Lee Yang in September 2010. Recently, Ms. Lee Yang
has been re-engaged as Consultant to assist the company to handle
the Mongolia Iron Mine operation. A Mongolia professional firm has
also been engaged to prepare the updated feasibility study report
and environmental report as a base for the company to formulate

the future operating strategy.

Regarding the iron sand trading business in Indonesia, trial
production commenced in January 2012, using the first batch of 2
separator machines, resulting in the delivery of the initial 5,000MT
of raw materials to the worksite. With trial production underway,
PT. Dampar will commence marketing of the processed iron sand to
both domestic and overseas customers.
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However, PT. Dampar has preliminarily been advised by its Indonesia
legal adviser that the major impacts as a results of Amendments are
that (1) all the raw mineral output in form of ore from the Mining
area cannot be directly exported after 6 May 2012; (2) the owners
and operators of mineral or coal mines in Indonesia has to increase
the value-added to minerals through processing and refining before
the processed minerals or coal can be exported; (3) all value-added
processing and refining programs shall be finalized before 2014; and
(4) mine owners can export all the mineral raw materials (ores) if
they have already obtained the recommendation from the Ministry
of Energy and Mineral Resources of Indonesia (MEMR) through
Director General.

Following the advice by the Indonesia legal adviser, PT. Dampar has
revised its business plan and is now in the process of applying for
its own IUP OPK (Indonesia’s mining company operation license)
and conducting various feasibility studies with the view of building
its own pig-iron smelter to further enhance the quality of the iron
concentrates and through PT. Indo to apply for the recommendation
from MEMR for export all the minerals (ores) during the grace

period.

Accordingly, the Iron Ore Mine Operation segment recorded a loss
of approximately HK$2,444,000 for the year ended 31 March 2012.
The loss was mainly comprised of administrative expenses.

During the year under review, the Group incurred non-cash finance
costs of HK$22,128,000 as a result of the imputed interests on
the convertible notes issued to the vendors of Indonesia Iron Mine
business.

In accordance with the valuation report of the equity component of
the convertible notes issued, fair value change in respect of financial
liability of HK$27,371,000 (convertible notes) was reflected through
profit or loss account; this non-cash item enhanced our financial

results accordingly.

2 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis

EREREHEE

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Shareholders’ equity decreased to approximately HK$458,085,000
as at 31 March 2012 from approximately HK$586,842,000 as at
31 March 2011. As at 31 March 2012, the short term and long term
interest bearing debts to shareholders’ equity was approximately
12.9% (as at 31 March 2011: approximately 20.5%).

On 19 July 2011, the holders of the convertible notes converted
convertible notes of approximately HK$33,534,000 into
180,000,000 ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.1863.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012,
HK$998,681,000 (2011: HK$1,267,800,000) which was financed
by current liabilities of HK$76,645,000 (2011: HK$191,937,000),
non-current liability of HK$206,210,000 (2011: HK$229,980,000),
non-controlling interests of approximately HK$257,741,000 (2011:
HK$259,041,000) and shareholders’ equity of HK$458,085,000
(2011: HK$586,842,000).

the Group had total assets of

The Group's current ratio as at 31 March 2012 was approximately
1.98 (2011:
borrowings divided by the shareholders’ equity was approximately
12.9% (2011:
Group as at 31 March 2012 were denominated in Renminbi, about
100% (2011:
rates while interest of the remaining balances was calculated on

1.81) and gearing ratio, representing the total
20.5%). The total outstanding borrowings of the

50%) borrowings was interest-bearing with variable

fixed interest rates.
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TR EREEES R ETHT

As at 31 March 2012, certain buildings with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$28,407,000 (2011: approximately
HK$29,587,000), plant and machinery amounting to approximately
HK$32,746,000 (2011: HK$9,678,000), land use rights amount
of approximately HK$1,381,000 (2011: HK$4,108,000) and bank
deposits amount of approximately HK$nil (2011: HK$1,820,000)
had been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
As at 31 March 2012, the Group had no other material capital
commitment and contingent liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE YEAR

As announced on 16 May 2011, the Group has completed the

disposal of one of its pharmaceutical business on 16 May 2011.

Save as disclosed herein, during the period under review, there
were no other material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or
associates of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2 6 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis
ITRBEHEEHEES W R

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN
EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group's assets, liabilities and business transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Indonesian Rupiah
and US Dollars which have been relatively stable during the year
ended 31 March 2012. The Group was not exposed to material
exchange risk and had not employed any financial instruments for

hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group has a total of approximately 485 employees in Hong
Kong, Indonesia, Mongolia and the PRC as at 31 March 2012.
Remuneration packages are generally structured according to market
situations and individual performance. Apart from the mandatory
provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group also
provides medical benefits and sponsors employees in different

training and continuous education programs.
APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders and business associates for their ongoing
support and extend our appreciation to our management team and
staff members for their contributions to our achievements in the

year.

By order of the Board
Chim Kim Lun, Ricky

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2012
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 43 to 44.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of share options are set out in note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend,

or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

2 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The Company has deficit at 31 March 2012 which comprises
contributed surplus of approximately HK$180,030,000 less
accumulated losses of approximately HK$681,335,000. Accordingly,
the Company has no reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group spent an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$10,368,000 on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion and
improvement of the facilities of its pharmaceutical and mining

business and no disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2012 are

set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRS

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2012 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky
(Chairman)

Mr. Chan Sung Wai
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chan Hau Kong (removed on 9 August 2011)

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (resigned on 31 May 2012)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Tong Leung Sang
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yiu Fai Ming (not re-elected on 9 August 2011)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Tse Yuk Kong (retired on 9 August 2011)
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (appointed on 8 November 2011)

In accordance with Clauses 86(2) and 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse, Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky and Mr.
Chan Sung Wai will retire at the Annual General Meeting. Each
of Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election as Director at the Annual
General Meeting. Mr. Chan Sung Wai will not offer himself for re-
election as Director.

3 O Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

The term of office of each of the Independent and Non-executive
Directors is for a term of three years subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting as required

by the Company's Bye-laws.

None of the Director being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Directors’ interests in shares

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified

to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Directors’ interests in shares (Continued)

(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)

as set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

ESREIETRAEBRES
2w (8)
EENRO 2B (E)

AESLETERRSZBETA ([REST
Al ENEARRREERARZAERE
Al ([BERPT)) 2 st FORB AT

RERGARGZIHFE

Number of ordinary shares held

FEZEBRYA
Total
interests as
Number of percentage of
Personal Family Corporate  share options Total the issued
Name of Director interest interests interests held interests share capital
HERTREZ
EEEB B AR RER ARER REZEREYE BER AERBIN
Chim Kim Lun, Ricky =5l& - - - 35,000,000 35,000,000 0.90%
Chan Sung Wai G - - - 16,000,000 16,000,000 0.41%
Wong King Lam, Joseph BEER - - - 16,000,000 16,000,000 0.41%
Tong Leung Sang e - - - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.09%
Zhang Xianlin REM - - - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.09%
Lum Pak Sum WEHR - - - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.09%
Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse BER - - - - - -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the Directors BREXFBEEN RZE—Z—F=A

or the chief executives or their associates had any interests of short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
14 January 2002 (the "Old Share Option Scheme”) has been

terminated on 9 August 2011 and a new share option scheme

(the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company

on 9 August 2011. There were no options granted under the New

Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the details and movements

in the share options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme are

as follows

Directors’ Report
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ARAR-_ZTZ-_F—-A+HBERAZER
et ([EEREEDER-_F——F
NANBHEEIE MARBER =T ——%F
JNAN B BRA— T B AT & ([ 3B At
FHE) - AR FBLER BB SR G
EAAT B S A o

BRE-T-—F=A=t—AILEE RS
BB BIE B 2 AR 2 S R )
mF -

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding
Exercisable Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled at
Exercisable price per at 1 April  duringthe  duringthe  during the  during the 31 March
Date of grant period share 2011 year year year year 2012
R-B--F R=%B-Z%
A-B =B=1+-H
R BH T BRTEE HATE REARE REATE REAXH REAZH WA
HKS
BT
Category 1: Directors
Bhl- 8%
Chim Kim Lun, Ricky 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 35,000,000 - - - 35,000,000
11 July 2021
ERlE Z2-——5+A+ZR ZE--ELATZRZ
EC-%LAt-R
Chan Sung Wai 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
11 July 2021
REE ZZ-—FtAtZH ZF--FtAt+=RE
ZEC-%tAT-R
Wong King Lam, Joseph 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
11 July 2021
ERR E-—%#£A+-A ZE--45tAt+-AZ
B -EtAt-8
Tong Leung Sang 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
11 July 2021
mRE —2-—%tA+-R —EF--Ftff+-RZ
Eo-%1At-R
Yiu Fai Ming 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
(not re-glected at the 11 July 2021
Annual General Meeting
held on 9 August 2011)
AR (R-F-——F\ANE ZF-——F+A+ZH ZF-—-FtATZHE
ROZRREFASE ZEZ-5tAt+-8
TESE)
MERIZERER AR
—z—asy 33



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

BT E ()

Number of share options
BREYE
Outstanding
Exercisable Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled at
Exercisable price per at 1 April  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the 31 March
Date of grant period share 2011 year year year year 2012
R-E--F R-B-ZF
mA-H =ZA=t-A
Rt BH ;2 BRITRE HATR REARE RERTE RERKM  REATH WA
HKS
B
Zhang Xianlin 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
11 July 2021
REM ZZ-—FtAtZA ZF--5tAt+=RE
B -ELAt-H
Tse Yuk Kong 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
(retired on 9 August 2011) 11 July 2021
AL (R=F——F\AAB ZT——F+A+ZB ZT——FtA+ZHE
&) R -FtAt-R
Lum Pak Sum 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
11 July 2021
R ZE-—FtA+ZA ZF--FtA+=RE
“EC-FLAT-A
Total for directors - 84,500,000 - - - 84,500,000
BRE
Category 2:
i
Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 24,000,000 - - - 24,000,000
11 July 2021
EE “E——%4A+-A -—E--4£tAt+-AZ
R -FtAt-R
Total for employees - 24,000,000 - - - 24,000,000

ER &
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Directors’ Report
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BREE (&)

Number of share options

BREZE
Outstanding
Exercisable Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled at
Exercisable price per at1April  duringthe  duringthe  during the  during the 31 March
Date of grant period share 201 year year year year 2012
R=B--% R-B-ZF
A-H =B=1+-H
R AH G:d BRITHE HATE RERRE REATE REAXN  REAEHE HATE
HKS
B
Category 3:
#Rl=:
Other affiliates 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 - 32,000,000 - - - 32,000,000
11 July 2021
EtBBAL “E——%#£f+-H —E-—-#tAt+-AE
R FEAT-H
Total for other affiliates - 32,000,000 - - - 32,000,000
EthBEA LA
Total for all categories - 140,500,000 - - - 140,500,000

A BRI

The closing price of the Company's shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2011, being the date of grant, was HK$0.071.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in
securities and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2012, was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, so far as was known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than any director and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or

RITE——F=A=+—HB REERAEAR
FIZEZTBRABMRM ATAL(RRF
EANEERETZTHRABRIN RARF R
I MR R A m SRR MARE
M HERIIEXVEE2RFE3IN G2 HX
R E  HEEBEN AR R AREES L

as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange:

Number of

issued ordinary

BIRPIE3B6IHAFEZECMA  RBTTA
RGNS RS

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company

(Note 1)

R NN

BEZE BT ERITREAZ

RRERB g7 ZERHAE BB

(Ktat1)

Golden Mount Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 215,000,000 (L) 6.47%
Golden Mount Limited ( #77%2) E=mfEAA

Mr. Chim Pui Chung (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 215,000,000 (L) 6.47%

EREEE (H2) NEES AR 2w

Mr. Yue Wai Keung Beneficial owner 270,000,000 (L) 6.96%
REEREE (H5t2) BB A

Empire Bridge Assets Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 2,101,937,735 54.19%
BliEBR AR (H5E3) BB A

Tang Sze Wan (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 2,101,937,735 54.19%

WHFE (HiE3)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(L

All the shares are long positions.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of issued
shares of the Company of 3,878,745,758 Shares as at 31 March
2012.

Golden Mount Limited is solely owned by Mr. Chim Pui Chung, who
is the father of Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, a Director.

Empire Bridge Assets Limited (“Empire Bridge”), solely owned by
Ms. Tang Sze Wan, is the sole beneficial owner of HK$391,591,000
zero coupon convertible non-redeemable note due 2017 issued
on 29 September 2010 by the Company at a conversion price of
HK$0.1863 each (which entitle Empire Bridge to 2,101,937,735
Conversion Shares upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to

such convertible notes in full).

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is

not aware of any other person who had an interest or short position

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2012.

DIRECTORS’

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, its

holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which

a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2012.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year ended 31 March 2012,
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers comprised
approximately 20% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year ended 31 March 2012,
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised
approximately 44.8% of the Group’s total purchases while
the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 14.7% of the Group's total purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2012, did a director,
an associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five
largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2012, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart from
the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the
Group also provides medical benefits and sponsored employees in

different training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are decided,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.
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REMUNERATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2012.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2012 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. In March 2012, the practice of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. A resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company for the
subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chim Kim Lun, Ricky
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report
28 3L 1% B EM B

PHJ;E%%@%¢¢$%%
Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to
151, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2012

e EHEIE R

HE—F——F=H=+—HIFEF

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K1t FHE T F&T
Revenue WA 7 113,586 157,929
Cost of sales $HE KA (89,347) (107,633)
Gross profit EH 24,239 50,296
Other revenue H U A 8 1,090 783
Other gains A 9 45,418 9,720
Distribution and selling expenses oiE R EHE E R (30,563) (38,001)
Administrative expenses TR X (27,338) (30,878)
Loss on early redemption of REBRIA N EE 2 EE
promissory notes - (298)
Other expenses H X2 10 (141,348) (13,707)
Finance costs b & AR 11 (26,872) (23,184)
Loss before taxation R 3 Al & 18 12 (155,374) (45,269)
Taxation T8 15 (202) =
Loss for the year REEFEEE (155,576) (45,269)
Other comprehensive income, Hit2EKRA > BRBE
net of tax
Exchange differences on translating & /BINEKEL 2
foreign operations bE i ZE R 4,356 4,899
Other comprehensive income ANEFHMEAERA - BREE
for the year, net of tax 4,356 4,899
Total comprehensive loss REEHRZHEER
for the year (151,220) (40,370)
Loss attributable to: JEfh &5 18
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ ¥ =N (154,276) (45,061)
Non-controlling interest JEPERE = (1,300) (208)
(155,576) (45,269)

IG5 3R E
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iokz3 FET FE T
Total comprehensive loss EEREmEmEE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ ¥ =N (149,920) (40,162)
Non-controlling interest IEVE AR (1,300) (208)
(151,220) (40,370)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Loss per share TkEE
— Basic and diluted —E AR #E 16 (4.03) (1.39)

All operations of the Group are classified as continuing operations.

7 o

AEBEZHEZEHRSBAFERKLESE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEM 2 st B2 SR a M HE 2 —31H -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= A g X
GEMBRAR
At 31 March 2012 R=-F——#=H=+—H
2012 2011
—E-—_F —E——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FABT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment N 17 83,411 84,740
Prepaid lease payments TN EEKIE 18 4,023 3,996
Intangible assets | A E 19 576,334 576,334
Mining right R 20 183,433 249,600
Deposits for acquisition of W ZE BB MR IEZ
property, plant and equipment by ia - 5,427
847,201 920,097
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 21 15,054 14,381
Trade and bills receivables B 5 e W BR 3 X e IR ZE 4R 22 45,688 50,036
Prepayments, deposits and other TR FRIE ~ 28 R E Ath e UK
receivables BR K 23 6,876 80,562
Amount due from non- FEURSEYE IR 2 2 BB
controlling interest 738 804
Tax receivables e 568 =
Financial assets at fair value BREREATEAREZ
through profit or loss M EE 24 741 728
Bank balances and cash SRITHESRNIRE 25 81,815 100,520
151,480 247,031
Asset classified as held for sale DEABIELEEE 26 = 100,672
151,480 347,703
Current liabilities G R=Ki
Trade payables B 5 EMRR 27 9,330 13,709
Other payables and accruals HEiEMNER R ETE B 28 6,807 28,719
Amount due to non-controlling JE {F FE 428 i e 2= R IR
interest 1,460 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 59,048 68,883
76,645 111,311
Liabilities directly associated with HEAOMARIEFLHEEERE
assets classified as held for sale HEzaE 26 = 80,626
76,645 191,937
Net current assets REEEFE 74,835 155,766
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABERAREBEE 922,036 1,075,863

TG &S
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At 31 March 2012 R=F—=—#F=H=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
B FHET FHETT
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital B 30 193,937 184,937
Reserves fei 5 264,148 401,905
Total equity attributable to EATEE AEMN
owners of the Company ERBE 458,085 586,842
Non-controlling interest RS 257,741 259 041
Total equity L E2 8] 715,826 845,883
Non-current liability FRBEE
Convertible notes AR R 37 206,210 229,980
206,210 229,980
922,036 1,075,863

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 151 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
25 June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky
ERl&ELE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

nv'R
For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZ - =

1;"‘?:‘

:¢Eﬁ5+—5¢¢§

ARARE AR
PRC Attributable
Share statutory to non-
Share Share option Special reserve  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Subtotal interest Total
BRE HE FER
BE  ROEE B RERE iEARE  EXRE  RAEE Mt BaEd @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT TET ThL TAL TATL TATL ThT TET TAL TEL
(note ) (note i)
(W) (W)
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-2ENA-A 101,530 623,441 - 92,926 3,286 25,146 (408,076) 438,253 - 438,253
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - - - (45,061)  (45,061) (208)  (45,269)
Other comprehensive loss TEEEMZAEE
for the year - - - - - 4,899 - 4,899 - 4,899
Total comprehensive loss TERB2EFE
for the year - - - - - 4,899 (45,061) (40,162) (208) (40,370)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HHEAA - - - - - - - - 259249 259,249
Open offer AREE 50,765 81,224 - - - - - 131,989 - 131,989
Expenses incurred in connection FRARREEEZRAR
with the open offer - (3,942) - - - - - (3,942) - (3,942)
Conversion of convertible notes into P EAREHE % AR {)
shares 32,642 28,252 - - - - - 60,894 - 60,894
Expenses incurred in connection ARTRRERERELE IHR
with the conversion of
convertible notes - (190) - - - - - (190) - (190)
At31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 RZB——%=A=+-HRk
“3-——4mA-A 184,937 728,785 - 92,926 3,286 30,045 (453,137) 586,842 259,041 845,883
Loss for the year rEEBR - (154,276)  (154,276) (13000 (155,576)
Other comprehensive loss rEERMZEEE
for the year - - - - - 4,356 - 4,356 - 4,356
Total comprehensive loss AEEBELERR
for the year - - - - - 4,356 (154,276) (149,920) (1,300) (151,220)
Conversion of convertible notes TRREEERARA
into shares 9,000 9,527 - - - - 18,527 - 18,527
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries (&M B A RGBSR - - - (1,224) (5,485) 1,224 (5,485) = (5,485)
Share-based payment expenses BB ARRZHRRAE - - 8,121 - 8,121 = 8,121
At 31 March 2012 W=E-ZF=B=1-H 193,937 738,312 8,121 92,926 2,062 28,916 (606,189) 458,085 257,141 715,826




onsolidated Statem

GEEmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the nominal
amount of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date of the group
reorganisation over the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company as consideration for the acquisition of the subsidiaries.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory
reserves, being a statutory surplus reserve fund and an enterprise
expansion fund (collectively referred to as the “PRC statutory reserve
funds”), which are non-distributable. The statutory surplus reserve
fund may be used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with
approval from relevant government authority, to increase capital. The
enterprise expansion fund, subject to approval by relevant government
authority, may also be used to increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—=%

=]
an fﬁ. G u'_T‘f. B %4
—E= A=A EE

2012 2011
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Operating activities EIEREK
Loss before taxation Fr 5 Bl 5 18 (155,374) (45,269)
Adjustments for: BRI SIEZFAE:
Interest income on bank deposits SRITFERF B A (57) (199)
Finance cost & AR 26,872 23,184
Depreciation of property, plant M- WEREREBITE
and equipment 14,717 21,171
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH - 28
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T 5 78 & R I8 B 6H 116 229
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BERZEZ
and equipment Wz - (200)
Fair value change on financial KRR ATEAR VB
assets at fair value BEZANFEES
through profit or loss (13) (151)
Fair value changes on AR ERE s AT EEE
convertible notes (27,371) (3,860)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & MY B A B WS (16,571) =
Reversal of impairment PE Z RN ER
loss recognised in respect of BB B 1 E
trade receivables (1,298) (5,509)
Provision for impairment loss 2 Z KRR 2R E
on trade receivables B 1E 3,060 3,292
Loss on early redemption of IREE RN EE 2 EE
promissory notes - 298
Expense recognised in respect W OARE 25 45 B AR 19
of equity-settled share-based RERZNRER A
payments 8,121 -
Provision for impairment loss on H 8 W kI8 2 R E B 1R
other receivables B iE 64,000 =
Provision for impairment loss R 2 BEBERE
on mining rights 66,167 10,415
Operating cash flows before LEECEPHcEERERE
movements in working capital (17,631) 3,429
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE(Em) R (462) 266
Decrease in trade and B ZRBEER R F‘Hﬁbﬂ)@ﬂid\
bills receivables 4,057 651
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TETFRIA ~ =B K E b FE UK BR 3K
other receivables R 5,969 42,573
Decrease in trade and bills payables %f1TﬁETA&r1TmT)§}W9 (3,656) (28,239)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables ﬁﬁﬁf’iﬁﬁﬁ AN FEETE A
and accruals w1 (4,264) 17,725
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from fﬂﬁl 3H [i% ¥ 2= 308
non-controlling interest () 1,460 (2,582)
Decrease in amount due to a shareholder &< % 3 5% 38 g 2> (22) (3,000)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (FR) RKELEXHK 2 RE (14,549) 30,823
The PRC enterprise income tax paid EATHR B MG (202) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR /RERLEFH 2
operating activities e FE (14,751) 30,823
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—=%F

—CES A= —AIEE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T F&TT
Investing activities RETEE
Interest received B F B 57 199
Purchase of property, plant and ﬁ%,\%% B k&
equipment (4,941) (19,192)
Increase in deposits paid PUEE Y - BB R TS
for acquisition of property, plant ZIRE
and equipment = (443)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BERZHEMS
plant and equipment MIE 12,000 205
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WENB AR ZRE R FE
subsidiaries - (30,381)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BHEMBITEZRL S ()
deposits - 5,006
Net cash generated from/(used in) B,/ (AR REESZ
investing activities e FHE 7,116 (44,606)
Financing activities &R E
Interest paid EATFE (4,744) (6,673)
New bank borrowings raised HIBRITIEE 47,148 78,207
Repayment of bank borrowings EEEITEE (56,983) (44,121)
Net proceeds from issue of share BT TS SR IEF 58 = 127,857
Redemption of promissory notes & O] & N Z iR = (99,401)
Net cash (used in)/generated from (BR) /REBEESHZ
financing activities HEFE (14,579) 55,869
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and B RREZEM2E M
cash equivalents (R A) F=8 (22,214) 42,086
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REHWZEEREEEEY
of the year 101,964 65,953
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 9| [ R & &) 5/ £ 2,065 (6,075)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERZRSERSEED
the year 81,815 101,964
Analysis of balances of cash and cash BERBESZEEYZEHD T
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RIT&ERNIRE 81,815 100,520
Bank balances and cash included in HADEARELHEEEL
assets classified as held for sales RITHB IR S - 1,444
81,815 101,964

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & BT R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

GENERAL

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of its

annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while its
subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and engaged in
iron ore exploration, exploitation and trading operation in
Mongolia and Indonesia.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (“RMB")
which is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the group entities operate. For the purpose of
presenting the consolidated financial statements, Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD") is used as the presentation currency because
the Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange in

Hong Kong.
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Notes to tﬂe Consolidated Financia

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=F——%F=H=4+—HIFFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2011.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued

in 2010
HKFRS 1 Limited Exemption from Comparative
(Amendments) HKFRS 7 — Disclosures for First-

time Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments

The application of the above New HKFRSs had no material
effect on the results and financial positions of the Group for
the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared
and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time

Adopters’
HKFRS 1 Government loans?
(Amendments)
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
(Amendments) Assets’
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
(Amendments) Assets and Financial Liabilities*

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9  Mandatory Effective Date of

(Amendments) HKFRS 7 and Transition

Disclosures®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?*
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

HKAS 12
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (as revised

in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 32
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets?
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Presentation — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of financial
assets. These amendments are intended to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when a financial asset is
transferred but the transferor retains some level of continuing
exposure in the asset. The amendments also require disclosures
where transfers of financial assets are not evenly distributed
throughout the period.

The revised disclosure requirements contained in the
amendments HKFRS 7 are intended to help investors
and other financial statements users to better assess the
effect or potential effect of offsetting arrangements on a
company’s financial position. The amendments also improve
transparency in the reporting of how companies mitigate
credit risk, including disclosure of related collateral pledged
or received. Companies and other entities are required to
apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, and also interim periods within those
annual periods. The required disclosures should be provided

retrospectively.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FEI REEFT BB ﬁ% £
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL EXEH| ([HB! M‘z
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") ZB ) 2ER (&)

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for RZZEZSNGFEB 2 BB REE
the classification and measurement of financial assets. AIZESRSIAMBEED HRGTEZH
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the BRE - RZE—TF B 2 BBNER
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for SRAFORBEEEUBEEIER
derecognition. FFEARBUEBERZHTE o

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: BEMBREERNESR 2 EERTESH

MEAT
e HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are o BEMBMERRESRATE A

within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only

dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ¥E] R&IER] B BB R
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL %; (F%ﬂ% ﬁ’l%&%

Al
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ) 2R (&)

(CONTINUED)

\

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value
of a financial liability (designated as at fair value through
profit or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair

U BEEZHERFEMS -
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\
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value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.
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HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 “Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to

deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” and
HK (SIC)-Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on
the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements.
In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled

assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting or proportionate

accounting.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

5] M &IEE] &/ B ﬁﬁ% R

2Akk

Ay
28 ) >R (&)

BB EREERE10FMARE B S
HANE2ITR (A RBUHMBEHREZ] KR
BREVEREZHNDEES (EHKR
BZEe) 2B (#4584
A ER] - BEMEHREERFE 105
HEEHEZNESR BEZHEILE:
QEWIRERBZEN  (D)BHEEKRE
RRAFTS A & B2 R SEF - K&()
TEHWRERRIZE NN ERES
ERETE e - BAMBHHRELERE
105 2 INABE)Z 85| AR IR R FEE N

EEMBRELEMNEI1FRAEES
FTERENR [REERFAZ#m ] &
BB (BEBZEEZEY) —2EF13%
[REZEHERE—&ESIEHZ R
HE] - BENBREENE1FRIE
EMAHEHHEEH 2 LB HEA
SRR RIFBEBMIBERMELERE 11
B HRARHESBEAHARKESAED
Al HXH&E@%FE@?T?FZTE%U&ﬁEo
MHLmE - RIBEFB S ERFE315
ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ?%ifiﬁ%” CHREEEE
CHEREREERERERLE -

i
kﬂ&

AN RIBFBMBREENE 1R
BENTFRARGGNEAR MR
BEBGHEREI R ZAREIER
A AEEEFDAR LA EFHEARK-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or & B T R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=—F——%F=H=4+—HIFFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 12 is a standard for disclosure and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more

extensive than those in the current standards.

These standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these standards are applied early at the

same time.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS

13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting

periods.

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 “/nvestment Property” are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,

unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for
defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most
significant change relates to the accounting for changes in
defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments
require the recognition of changes in defined benefit
obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when they
occur, and hence eliminate the “corridor approach” permitted
under the previous version of HKAS 19. The amendments
require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised
immediately through other comprehensive income in order for
the net pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the

plan deficit or surplus.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and require retrospective

application with certain exceptions.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 32 address inconsistencies in
current practice when applying the offsetting criteria and

clarify:

o the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right
of set-off”; and

o that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014 and are required to be applied

retrospectively.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet
in a position to state whether the above new HKFRSs will have
a significant impact on the Group's and the Company’s results
of operations and financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consolidation given

exchange for assets.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or

up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the relevant conditions for
recognition were generally recognised at their fair values at the

acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree is initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #EZ—=%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts

and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and
any identified impairment loss at the end of the reporting

period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives after
considering their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% - 25%

20% - 50%
12'2% — 30%
62/3% — 30%

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the
item is dereognised.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. The mining right is amortised using
the unit-of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves, which is reviewed at least at each
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 B Z=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for mining right at each reporting date. Mining
right is tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present values of those cash flows.

The Group’s management has determined the estimated useful
lives of its mining rights based on the proven and probable
mineral reserves. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group will be able to continuously renew
the mining right and the business license of respective mining
subsidiary at minimal charges. Accordingly, the Group has
used the proven and probable mineral reserves as a basis for

estimation of the useful life of its mining right.

Amortisation rate is determined based on estimated proven
and probable mineral reserve quantities with reference to the
independent technical assessment report. The capitalized costs
of the mining right are amortised using the unit-of-production
method. Any change to the estimated proven and probable
mineral reserves will affect the amortisation charge of the
mining right.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Expected useful lives of mining right and mineral
reserves (Continued)

Proven and probable mineral reserve estimates are updated
at regular basis taking into account production and technical
information about the mines. In addition, as prices and cost
levels change from year to year, the estimate of proven
and probable mineral reserves also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and
is reflected on a prospective basis in relation to amortization
rate.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #EZ—=%F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land use rights

Interest in leasehold land use rights is accounted for as prepaid
lease payment and is amortised over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

The financial statements of each group entity are presented in
the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose
of the consolidated financial statements, the results and
financial position of each entity are expressed in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the presentation currency for the consolidated

financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the

rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entities
with functional currency other than HKD are translated into
the presentation currency (i.e. HKD) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ—=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
(state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme) are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the assets of

which are held in separate trustee administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme are
expensed as incurred are vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the

contributions payable by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)
Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the Group participates in the PRC Schemes whereby
the Group is required to contribute to the PRC Schemes
to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible employees.
Contributions made to the PRC Schemes are calculated based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the PRC Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the PRC
Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents gross
contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes operated by
the relevant authorities of the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share options scheme for the
purpose of recognition of significant contribution of and
for the provision of incentives to any directors, employees
(whether full-time or part-time), consultants, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors
to the Group or affiliates. The fair value of share options
granted to employee is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the

options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ—=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis

over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same

basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEZFTEEK (&)
(CONTINUED)

At each end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the REREHR ~EBeHESGERF
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with ReBEEEREE RS EET
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication B UEERRAEMNTRBERZE
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the BEDHRAERE Wzt EECH]
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its KEleBEEREREE  AIEZEE
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced ZEASBEREZATYESE - RE
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as EESHREERAEZ L -

an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying R EBEREZER ZEE KT
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of S REAIEINE H A W Bl 6 58 2 L HEET
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying EETE Mg NE 2 RESE T BB
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have ZEEBTFEYEBABEBEBE
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for FRIE € 28 < B E B 18 2 B 0 AN iR A
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is NG

recognised as income immediately.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEZKARAZRFEME <RIE
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. EAR AR NE T AT E A&
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in REFEEEABEBR M HEERE
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of WAEET TR AN RAFTEL B ERH
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the KA

sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period, and are discounted to present value where the effect is
material.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #EZ—=%F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or It is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains” line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash and loans to
an associate) are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition,

the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

e MR MR

——F=A=1—HIFFE

TESBR (B

BMBEE (&)
B RN E

R KR FIATY A B E 5] EE Y
TR R BT IS WE 2 FROT B
BE- NS HERRZESHRENR &
RREWFE (BRE 5 REMREEE
F o RITEREBR ARG T —HEE
REZER) BB R RIZE KA
BMAEERCEEREBRAR-

B R JE W5 R B 18

ot

Sl

ERREWFIARZBREHRTE
BRERR ﬁﬁ%ﬁ FRET BN
MW FIB 2 At R RBERE—8
FEERIN L HARAE R RERKRIER
BEZEMHMXITE  MERKER
FRIE H IR RE

EMETRIZERBR AR
T-_FFR 81



Notes to the Consolidated

e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE_—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
the conversion option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
con-convertible debts. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in equity until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in capital reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in capital reserve will be released to the
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the option.

For the convertible note issued in connection to the acquisition
of assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiary, the
conversion option component is recognised at fair value and
included in equity, taking into account that the counterparty
must forfeit the right to received cash in order to receive
equity instrument. For other convertible notes, the difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder to covert the

notes into equity, is included in equity (capital reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial

positions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEZFTEEK (&)
(CONTINUED)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from IARBENEBEZHMmMAIELEEREZE
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by - MARFREGEELE —H\NEE
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain REBNA 2T NEESH A
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. BE-RABENEFBENBEEMM
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events EEZHEBEL BEHRAVEELE
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow BRRER T B B IEN &
of economic resources will be required or the amount of FFEmMARAER XABETSHERA
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is FREENEGRE MG HmERM TR KE -
not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated iz AT IR 2L - MARE Al g
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an Wt Bl S wRRrE-

outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past IRNEBEEDEBEEHMAEEHRZE
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the E -mARTARESHE —BXEIE
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain REBNAZT2ES o M EESHS
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A A FEE o (W1R 7] g 3R A B F &0 A -
contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes AR EETERAAREEGRNES
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of SRR  MERTFELHE
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, MzEmmA - BIEREHEE -

an asset is recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or join control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or, obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write
off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using straight-line method. The
estimation of useful lives of the depreciable assets is based
on the experience of the Group, and useful lives are reviewed
at each end of the reporting period based on changes in

circumstances.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ—=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear and
tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence arising
from changes in the market demands or service output
of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives continued to
be valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset
or a cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
and selling goods of similar nature. It could change significant
as a result of change in market condition. Management will

reassess the estimations at the end of the reporting period.
Estimate of recoverable amounts of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered
any impairment. The recoverable amount an asset or a
cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions and

estimates.
Impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. The Group’s maximum exposure to financial
loss due to failure to discharge an obligation by the debtors is
the carrying amount of trade and other receivables as stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ—=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Impairment of intangible assets

Determine whether intangible assets are impaired requires
estimation of the value-in-use, The value-in-use calculation
requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise form the cash generating unit and a suitable discount

rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of intangible asset at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$576,334,000 (2011:
HK$576,334,000) and no impairment loss was recognised
during the year.

Impairment of mining right

The Group tests annually whether mining right has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated above. The recoverable amount of mining right has

been determined based on discounted cash flow method.

The carrying amount of mining right at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$183,433,000 (2011:
HK$249,600,000) and impairment loss of approximately
HK$66,167,000 (2011: HK$10,415,000) during the year.
Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided in
note 20.

Measurement of convertible notes

On the date of issue of convertible notes, the fair value
is determined using a discount rate determined by an
independent professional valuer to the Group with reference
to market information; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability at fair value at the end of the reporting period in

accordance with the accounting policy stated above.

L THERZ ZEER
R ()

BEEEZHE

BETEVEERGRNERSHEER
EBE-EREEFEFERMGIENE
BeELBNEEZARBRERER
BEMBEUFERE

RBEBRRENEEZREBENA
576,334,000 L (=% —— &
576,334,000/ 7)) + i R R AR
BEEE-

PR 2 Bl 1

AEESFFRE LA S BRAA
REEEDCEXEMRE REREZ
B SELRECHRRAREARES
ARETE -

RBEEHARARBERERZ2ERBELN R
183,433,000 L. (=& — — & :
249,600,000/ 7T ) & 5 Ak (B & 18
%) /566,167,0008 L (ZF ——
10,415,000% 7T) - BB R EEEFTE
ZFE B MEE20 ©

KR E B2 E

REBETAIRRER BH - RFETHF
RASBEET BXGERPTEEZ M
RERUSEMSENMET : R SR
TRE LA RRRNBEHRREZA
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 B Z=—F——#F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT A

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 29 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an on-going basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through new shares issues, as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

AEBEEEERNZBH ERHE
RAEESEBERENTELE
R EEMSEHEREDR ZHZ
REFE RRERSEAFR&
RNEHAEEZ EERMEERE
F--

AEBEZERARBEREGER (B
TEEME2MEEZEE) R
ARRFEAANEGLERZ (BREE
BITRARGER) o

ARREERHERITELRRE -
R —#o EFEEER
ZRABREEEN 2 HERR -
AEEERBEZTIHERR
BRBTHR BOIHEIED
RENFEEBERRERE-

RAFREREBELEWT :

2012 2011

—E——F —T——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE T FE T

Total debt” wEB 59,048 120,368

Shareholders’ equity A% B a 458,085 586,842

Gearing ratio BENRX 12.89% 20.51%
# Total debts comprises bank borrowings (including the REBBFERITEE (BFEFTAL

amount comprised in liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale) as detailed in note 26.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #EZ=F——%F=H=4+—HIFFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5. IR THE (48)

2012 2011
—E-C=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Financial assets & E
Financial assets at fair value KERDIEAFEBEARZ
through profit or loss MBEEE 741 728
Loans and receivables (including &R R EWFIE (BERE R
cash and cash equivalents) BEEEY) 130,035 222,953
Financial liabilities BB E
Amortised cost B SH A A 76,457 111,261
Convertible notes GRS E 7S 206,210 229,980

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bill receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, amount due from non-controlling interest, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, convertible
notes, and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

AEBTENBIABREESRE
Wk R B R &~ TN R 1R
EREMBYRER EEZEQ
FEARZHBEE RBUFE
Perges RIR  RITHEBRES &
5 FE A BR X B B B A BR K A
BREBEAREE -ZFMHT
AREMERBRE -ZFYH LA
Z HE R R B B an AR R 22 5 A B
ZEREIMT -EREBEE R
EERFRR BREE AN
W BREUE B 5 5 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 B Z=—F——#F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

96

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group's financial results and its cash flows. The Group's
operations are mainly in the PRC other than Hong Kong,
and the sales and purchases transactions are conducted
using RMB, as such the foreign currency risk is minimal.
The Group has started its operation in Indonesia, as there
were limited transactions conducted using Indonesian
Rupiah, the foreign currency risk is minimal. The Group
currently has not entered into any contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risk. However, the management
monitors foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 29
for details) and bank deposits (see note 25 for details).
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider restructure the
Group's credit facilities should the need arise.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

5. BT A (&)

% E

SN EJR f2

SNEE LB 5 08 B SN S B R B B
(BREXAKEZYBEERA
Reng) Bk AR AEEZ
EBTEETEMIETELE
MEBEXZUAREET WA
B SN R B AR o AR SR B 2 R END
ERBEE BRAEERET
ZRHEE  WINERE BB - AR
S BRI EFT AR E L AH
N R - AT BEEESER
SN R R W ERE B E KR
SINEE R e S 1T 5 o

FIE AR

AEBENTASX 2R RENEME,
BEZHRFEEBRTERE (FHR
FfFE29) MERTTIF K (FHBRMFE
25) 6@  ARB 2 BRBREHE
ERFPHEEAFR - UBERE
REENERER AREREL
BRI REHBER A EEESR
ERMNXERENBERERE
HARBZEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r & B 95 SR R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ—=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of RMB Benchmark
Lending Rates (“RBLR") arising from the Group’'s RMB

denominated borrowings.

Interest rate risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank borrowings and bank deposits at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming bank
balances and the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were held/outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 would increase/
decrease by HK$295,240 (2011: increase/decrease by
HK$158,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its bank borrowings and
bank deposits.

5. IR THE (48)

TEmEE (&)
FEmE (&)

AEEZREEREMNERERER
EEPEM\E%%%\%%%‘J% (TA
REEREENK]|) RS A
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

98

(CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is reduced.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical locations is primarily in
PRC. Other than that, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk as trade

receivables consist of a large number of customers.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

ateme

5. BT H (&)

5C. BXEREEEERBER

(&)

=EEE

RZE-——F=A=+—B8 i
AEEZRXHHFRERBITAR
FHERRVBEELEH A
KEAARZ ZZREERRAN
REMBRRKMINZAZFTEE
REHE A AKERIPBER-

REEEERR EEERERE
ERUREMERERF  BRKE
ERER #E 1T 8 A UG [0 38 BR (& 7% © 1t
S AEBRERENRENZ
FHEMNEZEH A KREEE
IARERBL TR U @ £ B EH 25
ZREEBER -FHit ZAREER
RAEBEZEERBRERD

REZRYERME AKEZ
EERRMZMBEMCES S =
EETRBPBE R ZIN KK
EYEEMEMEAEREER
B EREZRUERKEARE
'R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT E (48)

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables, credit risk is concentrated
in counterparties in the PRC in relation to amount
receivable on disposal of associates as disclosed in
note 23.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority
of the counterparties are either banks of high credit

quality in Hong Kong or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with the relevant covenants.

FEmEE (&)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—=F—
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

liabilities which are included in the maturity analysis

provided internally to the key management personnel for

the purpose of managing liquidity risk. The tables have

been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of

financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

the Group can be required to pay. The table includes

both interest and principal cash flows.

5. BT A (&)

B mE R ()
B FR

TRAVNANEBIFTEMBEE
Z HERE R BB R - B R
EHRATEEBEASAIRR
ZEHARR DA HEEER

MRER - TRIIRBERAKER
XM BEEZRFBEBREY
BABCRMBREEREME -

ZFPRARBEMNERASE R

=
E-°

Weighted Total
average Total carrying
effective Within undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 year cash flows  at year end
mETH KERRE EREE
ERA= 15/ 1225 21258 SENE REAE BE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TR T THL TEL THL THL
Asat31 March 2012 R=B-=%
=A=t-H
Trade payables EAENER - 9,330 - - - 9,330 9,330
Other payables and ~ E A fER Bzt &
accruals EHER - 6,619 - - - 6,619 6,619
Amount due to ER R
non-controlling B#E
interest - 1,460 - - - 1,460 1,460
Bank borrowings BIMHEE 432 59,048 - - - 59,048 59,048
Convertible notes RREE 1237 - - - 425,125 425,125 206,210
76,457 - - 425,125 501,582 282,667
As at 31 March 2011 R-E--%
=R=t-H
Trade payables EHEMNER - 13,709 - - - 13,709 13,709
Other payables and b ER KRR
accruals EtER - 28,719 - - - 28,719 28,719
Bank borrowings ROEE 6.09 70,503 - - - 70,503 68,833
Convertible notes BREE 9.91 = = = 425,125 425,125 229,980
112,931 - - 425,125 538,056 341,241
1 OO Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #EZ=F——%F=H=4+—HIFFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. In addition, the management monitors the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the

reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$74,000 (2011: increase/
decrease by approximately HK$73,000). This is mainly
due to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading

investments.

5. IR THE (48)

At E % Bz
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #H#ZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5D. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #EZ=F——%F=H=4+—HIFFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. BT E (48)
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHBERIERAERZ R
consolidated statement of financial position FlEi &
The following table provides an analysis of financial TRAENRV P ERBIZA T AR
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial EZEMIAZON WREAR
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based FTEZABRREIRE—ZE=
on the degree to which the fair value is observable: i
Level 1:  quoted prices in active markets for the same F—H: A—THE(BREHAE
instrument (i.e., without modification or HEMBE)RNERET
repackaging); BN ZRIE
Level 2:  quoted prices in active markets for similar FEof: BUEESIBERNER
assets or liabilities or other valuation TSN wEIAEE
techniques for which all significant inputs are ZABNRAEBER 2T
based on observable market data; and HGEBRAER 2 Hinfh
BHZE: &
Level 3:  valuation techniques for which any significant F=H: TEHABELIEAATE
input are not base on observable market data. RemBHIBRER 2
mEHE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #H#ZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5D. Fair value (Continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

The following table show an analysis of financial
instruments recorded at fair value by the fair value

BB ITA (&)

5D. ¥ {H (&)
REGEH BRI EAERZ L -FE
8 (&)

TRETEAFES BB DIER
FELHZEBTADN:

hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-8 E-R £=R @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT TR THT
As at 31 March 2012 R-%-=%
=A=t-H
Financial asset at fair BEZRATEAERZ
through profit or loss MBEEE 741 - - 741
Convertible notes RE &S - - 206,210 206,210
As at 31 March 2011 R-_B——F
=EH==FE
Financial asset at fair BEERLTEARZ
through profit or loss BHEE 728 = = 728
Convertible notes RARER - - 229,980 229,980

For reconciliation of fair value of convertible notes,
please refer to note 31.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the
both years.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the both
years.

1 O 4 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ—=—F——F=H=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (the directors
of the Company) for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment are presented into two segments.

For manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products
operations, the chief operating decision maker regularly
reviews the performance of the sales revenue from
pharmaceutical products. These operations have been
aggregated into a single operating segment and named
“Manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products”.

For iron ore exploration and exploitation operations, the chief
operating decision maker regularly reviews the performance
of the iron ore operation in Mongolia. In addition, the Group
held a subsidiary in Indonesia which holds an exclusive right
to manage, refine and sell the iron sand at the respective
iron mine area hold by the non-controlling interest of the
subsidiary. These operations have been aggregated into a
single operating segment and named “lron ore exploration,
exploitation and trading operations”.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and result

TEBAREER

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31

March

UTHBEAEERAREDRIWAR

Manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products

KEZDM:

BZEZ=B=1+—HILLEE

Iron ore exploration,
exploitation and
trading operations

Consolidation

EERHERR HROR RAREHEE PEEELE
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
ZB-Zf —2——F ZB-CF 2—-F ZB-Zf —2—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR T TER TR
Segment revenue: FEEA:
Sales to external customers WIBEFHE 113,586 157,929 - - 113,586 157,929
Total revenue BN 113,586 157,929 - - 113,586 157,929
Segment results PEEE (24,316) (9,974) (2,444) (2,075) (26,760) (12,049)
Unallocated corporate KABLE
income/(expenses) WA/ (B%)
Other revenue EfA 1,090 783
Other gains Eflfas 18,034 5,709
Other expenses HAsE (141,348) (13,707)
Fair value changes on financial assets ~ EBREAFENEZ
at fair value through profit or loss BBAEZATE
29 13 151
Fair value changes on convertible notes B2 2 AFE
29 27,311 3,860
Central administration costs RRTBHRA (6:902) (6,534)
Loss on redemption of promissory BEALREZEE
notes - (298)
Finance costs BERK (26,872) (23,184)
Loss before taxation BREAEE (155,374) (45,269)
Taxation HE (202) =
Loss for the year FERS (155,576) (45,269)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—=F—

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
the year.

Segment results represent the loss suffered by each segment
without allocation of interest income, other income, fair
value change on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, fair value changes on convertible notes, central
administration costs, loss on early redemption of promissory
notes, other expenses, finance costs and taxation. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for

the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by operating

r & B 95 SR R B R

—F=H =1 IR

DEER (&)

N EHEZWATRRBINEEEF ZH
A FRTED IR 2 HE -

DEFEBEESAIEMEXZER A
KOBABWA - HbA - & B IR
REEANRZHBEEZ A TFEE

ARBREEZ ATFESE R RITERK
N -REEEANERZEE EMHA
XREKARBIE WA EEEE
AREERMGTE  EEETERDER

R BERBE TG -

UTRAKEEERZE

DREDZ

segments: DT
Iron ore exploration,
Manufacturing and sales of exploitation and
pharmaceutical products trading operation Total segment assets
EER#EEER ARYAR HEREHEE PREELR
At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BWZB-—§ RZT-——4% RIB-ZF HZT-—F RIB-ZF HRIT-—-F
ZA=t-A =A=t-B | ZA=t-A Z=A=t-H  Z=A=t-A Z=A=f-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER THET TR TET
Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 157,665 290,383 768,529 834,803 926,194 1,125,186
Unallocated corporate assets ROEEEEE 72,487 142,614
998,681 1,267,800
Liabilities a8
Segment liabilities PR (72,557) (186,254) (2,901) (4,480) (75,458) (190,734)
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAECEAE (207,397) (231,183)
(282,855) (421,917)
DMNERIZERB R A A
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #H#ZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and result (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment, cash and bank balances that are used by the
investment holding company and other receivables that are
receivable by the investment holding companies).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
convertible notes, deferred tax liabilities and unallocated
corporate liabilities (mainly include other payables and accruals
borne by the investment holding companies).

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DHEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information BEaoBEER

Iron ore exploration,
Manufacturing and sales of exploitation and

pharmaceutical products trading operation Other corporate entities Total segment assets
LERHEER HRHR HERESEE At ¥ER PEEEAE
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“2--f -T--§ -B--f -T--F CZB--fF - CZB-"&E -T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T TR T THr TR THR THT

Additions to property, plant &R WE BEREE

and equipment 4,022 18,250 6,277 748 69 194 10,368 19,192
Depreciation of property, n% BERXENE

plant and equipment 14,300 20,869 349 279 68 23 14,7117 VARVA
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ R E ZUAZ

payments 116 229 = = = = 116 229
Amortisation of intangible BYAESHR

assets - 28 - = - = - 28
Provision for impairment loss 2 5 fERER 30 2 L fE

on trade receivables BiEEE 3,060 3,292 - = - = 3,060 3,292
Provision for impairment loss ~ E A EYERH 2

on other receivables REBBREE - - - - 64,000 - 64,000 =
Provision for impairment loss R Z REEE

on mining rights B - - 66,167 10,415 - - 66,167 10,415
Geographical information i & & K
The Group operates in four principal geographical areas — the AEBENEFrEMERLE—HEH &
PRC, Hong Kong, Mongolia and Indonesia. B RhREE-
All of the Group’s revenue generated from external customers HE-_Z——FRk=-_ZF——F=H8
during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 were =+—BLEFE AKEREINBEP
generated in the PRC. 22 EBURA A R B A o

DMNERZERBER QA

—z——gzg 109
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110

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information (Continued)

The Group’s information about its non-current assets by
geographical location are detailed below:

wEEH (F)

ARELLE S B8R HRDEE
AR T

Non-current assets

EREBEE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E—%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
PRC i 80,458 87,712
Hong Kong B 207 207
Mongolia = 183,844 250,129
Indonesia e 582,692 582,049
847,201 920,097

Information about major customers TEEZFER

Included in revenue arising from sales of pharmaceutical
products of approximately HK$113,586,000 (2011:
approximately of HK$157,929,000) no single customers
contributed 10% or more to the Group’'s revenue for both
2012 and 2011.

REVENUE

Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax and other
sales taxes and returns, represents amounts invoiced to
customers for sales of pharmaceutical products during the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F——F=F=1—HIFFEZ

OTHER REVENUE 8. Hfbllg A
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Interest income on bank deposits |ITFERFE WA 57 199
Rental income He WA - 12
Dividend income form financial asset LB zRIE A FE AR 2 715
at fair value though profit or loss BEZREBA 59 51
Sundry income HMIEWA 974 521
1,090 783
OTHER GAINS 9. Hfthllz
2012 2011
—E——fF —FT—%
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Reversal of impairment loss recognised & 5 UL BR X B FER 2B (E
in respect of trade receivables &5 18 # 0] 1,298 5,509
Fair value change on financial assets B mE A FEAR VB
at fair value through profit or loss BEATFEEE 13 151
Fair value change on convertible notes AJ 32 i% ZE i v A (B & &)
(note) (Kt7z) 27,371 3,860
Gain on disposal of property, plant and & %% B E K& & 2 W
equipment - 200
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR 2 WS 16,571 =
Exchange gain B 5, W 2 165 -
45,418 9,720

Note:

Included in fair value change on convertible notes amount of
HK$91,000 (2011: HK$2,574,000) was the realised gain upon the
conversion of convertible notes.

M

ABRREEAFEZSHEIENE RSB
B E iR 2 A 291,000 7T (T ——4:
2,574,000 7T ) 2 B # 3 W & o
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10. OTHER EXPENSES

10. H b fi

2012 2011
—E——& T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Provision for impairment on PRUERE 2R BB B
mining right 66,167 10,415
Provision for impairment on B S REWRR 2B EEBERE
trade receivables 3,060 3,292
Provision for impairment on b e IR BR R 2 R (B B
other receivables 64,000 -
Share-based payment expenses LARR D B ER 2 S5 8,121 =
141,348 13,707
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. B & AR
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest on bank loans wholly ERAEFANBREEEL
repayable within five years IRITERF & 4,744 6,673
Imputed interest on promissory notes 7 X Z g B F| & - 5,147
Imputed interest on convertible notes ] # I& Z i E | & 22,128 11,364
26,872 23,184

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
1 1 2 Annual Report 2012




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12.LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Loss before taxation for the year has been arrived at after

o & B T

12. R A& 18

% Bt &t

HE—F——F=F=1—HIFFEZ

G BRBA B 1R Y HIRR T 51 B IR R

charging: ER
2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) BENE (Kit13) 2,354 943
Other staff costs Hih8 TR 10,411 21,629
Share-based payment expenses AR5 B E R 2 A X 8,121 =
Other staff’s retirement benefits Hih B T 2 RIKRBHETEIH K
scheme contributions 3,375 3,149
Total salaries G 24,261 25,721
Depreciation of property, plant and M- WERZETE
equipment 14,717 21,171
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A EEE (G AT
(included in administrative HAXA)
expenses) - 28
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments & 1<t 8 & 2k 18 # 116 229
Total depreciation and amortisation EREHEARE 14,833 21,428
Auditors’ remuneration 3Gl 450 380
Minimum lease payments under EEMROT 2&ERASTR
operating leases 697 500
Cost of inventories recognised as an  FER AR X 2 17 & KA
expense 83,060 105,185
TMERIZERBR AR
—z——zgg 113
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13.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were

R =E = F = S

13.855M <

ENENEUEZ MM T :

as follow:
Retirement
benefits scheme Salaries and
Directors’ fees contributions Sub-total other benefits Total
(note vi)
Ezhe BAREATHRHK Nt FERAMEA &g
(Hi&Evi)
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
-g--§ -3-—-% -%--f -T-—-% Z-%--f -F-—-% Z-g-2f -T-—-F Z-8-2f -T--%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAL AR Thr TER TEL AR Thr TER TEL
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky ERBRLE 1,300 - 12 - 1312 - 2,023 - 3,335 =
Mr. Chan Sung Wai RREEE 125 - 4 - 129 - 925 - 1,054 -
Mr. Chan Hou Kong (note i) RES 24 (Hiétii) - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph ~ EE R4 325 325 12 12 337 337 925 - 1,264 337
Mr. Danny Sun (note ) Danny Sundt £ (Aféti) - - - - - - - - - -
Ms. Lee Yang (note /) Lee YangZ + (#ti) - 166 - - - 166 - = = 166
1,750 491 28 12 1,778 503 3,873 = 5,651 503
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Tong Leung Sang (note ij) &5 ek (Hatii) 150 55 - - 150 55 202 - 352 55
Independent non-executive  BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (note i} WRREE (Hiti) 150 150 - - 150 150 202 - 352 150
Mr. Yiu Fai Ming hEREE 60 30 - - 60 30 202 - 262 30
Mr. Zhang Xianlin EEitis 150 150 = - 150 150 202 - 352 150
Mr. Tse Yak Kong (note i) HIBITEE (M) 6 55 - - 6 55 202 - 208 55
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse DERTE (Hitv)
(note v) 60 - - - 60 - - - 60 -
426 385 - - 426 385 808 = 1,234 385
2,326 931 28 12 2,354 943 4,883 - 1,231 443
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #EZ=F——%F=H=4+—HIFFZ

13.DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Danny Sun and Ms. Lee Yang resigned on 17 September
2010.

(ii) Mr. Tong Leung Sang and Mr. Lum Pak Sum were appointed on
19 November 2010.

(iii) Mr. Chan Hou Kong removed on 9 August 2011.

(iv)  Mr. Tse Yak Kong retired on 9 August 2011.

(v)  Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse were appointed on 8 November
2011.

(vi) Included in salaries and other benefits, amounted to
approximately HK$4,883,000 was contributed by share-based
payment expenses for directors during the year ended 31 March
2012.

During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, no
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

B.EEWE (&)

Hiat -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Danny Sun%t4 K lee YangZ+E 7
—E-TFEANATLREHITE-

BRERERMBERAEEGN -F—
ZE+—ATNABREZE-

BREXEEER=_ZT——FNANA
WEER

HBILAEER=ZZE——FN\ANE
RIE-

FERELEER-ZT——F+—AN
HEEE-

e RHAMBFEIEL4,883,000/ 7T
PHREBEE-_ZE——F=A=+—H
LHEEREBESERZURNDAERY
AR -

REBEEZZE—Z—ZFR=-ZF——F=A8
= t+t—HALEFE rEEMESNTE
EMSERBEZMASIRIMARE B R
CRESABEBHEE REE_T——F
M—T——F=ZA=+—HIFE &
EEENESR B HNET -
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14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
for the year included three (2011: one) executive directors
of the Company, whose emoluments are included in note
13 above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining two

14.EEM <

AEERARBIAL 2N BB
ARAZR(ZR—— % — B
EF - AMSHFERN LA K
BME(Z2—— % WE)REFA

(2011: four) highest paid individuals are as follows: TMeBREMT
2012 2011
B T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits FekHEMmEF 882 1,613

Retirement benefits scheme BRI 5T B R

contributions 24 51
906 1,664

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

& 7 B4 971,000,000 JT LA A °

15. TAXATION 15. 818
2012 2011
—EB-—F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHETT
Current tax BVEA R 18

Under provision of the PRC enterprise R iBAEFEFBEDSEMEH
income tax in prior years BETR 202 -
Tax charge for the year RNEEHIBERZ 202 -

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong had no assessable profit for the year (2011: Nil).

1 1 6 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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15. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2012 and

2011.

Subsidiary in Mongolia is subject to corporate income tax at
10% for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

Subsidiary in Indonesia is subject to corporate income tax at
25% for the year ended 31 March 2012.

r & B 95 SR R B R

HE—F——F=F=1—HIFFEZ

15. %8 (&)

HE-_Z——#r-_ZT——%=H
=t BLEFE FRZNBAGERE
25% BB EFTISH -

BEz-—T——p-—_T——F=AH
=+ HLEFE RHZMBAREAR
10% N EERFH -

HE_Z——H=-A=+—HILEE"
ENfE 2 Bt BB A~ Rl 7R 3225 % & - 1 2 Py
158

Taxation for the years are reconciled to the loss before tax as FEMIEERNATBEHRNAT
follows:
2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Loss before taxation Bx T AT ES 1B 155,374 45,269
Tax at the applicable income tax rate  ZEAFEHKE R+ E 2 FH1E 37,132 8,649
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NI 7 Sz = Fi 18 77 £
for tax purposes (29,365) (3,916)
Tax effect of income not taxable for — HBRF U A & Fi 18 77 £
tax purposes 4,904 757
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FEFER 2 HEEE 2
MERE (12,671) (7,132)
Under provision in respect of PRC BEFEAEETPENEY
tax in prior year TREAE 202 =
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses B LAI R FHERZHEEE
previously not recognised ZBIEE = 1,634
Tax effects of other deductible 5] AR B 52 2 EL 0 AT H1 bR R
temporary differences not ERIMBERE
recognised - 8
Tax charge for the year AEEHBERAX 202 =
l‘aiihi‘iéﬁ:ﬁ 117
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE—F——F=HA=+—HIFFZE

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

16. BIRE#E

ARBREANREBREAREEE
BR T BURETE -

2012 2011
- —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Loss s
Loss for the year attributable to the — Bist EHREAREBEZ A A A
owners of the Company for the HEAEGEFAEE
purpose of basic loss per share 154,276 45,061
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
Weighted average number of ordinary it EEREREE
shares for the purpose of basic loss & &% hn#E ¥ 19 &
per share 3,831,041 3,246,250

The Company’s outstanding convertible notes and share
options were excluded in the calculation of diluted loss per
share because the effect of the Company’'s outstanding
convertible notes and share options was anti-dilutive.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZ—-Z

17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% -BEKE

—F=ZA=1—HIUFE

R e

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold Motor Plantand  Construction
Buildings  equipment improvements vehicles machinery in progress Total
2B BAR
BFR  RAZRE HENEER RE  BEREE ERIR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TER TET THET TR TET
Cost %N
At 31 April 2010 RZZE-FFMA—H 85,794 8,281 993 3,539 102,241 9,319 210,167
Acquisition of subsidiary WEHB AR = 15 = = = = 15
Additions b 63 1,590 - 1,822 13,877 1,840 19,192
Disposals HE - - - (1,160) - - (1,160)
Transfers BE - - - - 2,978 (2,978) -
Reclassified to assets BHAEERELE
held for sale BE (8,699) (4,181) - (1,057) (62,729) (8,591) (85,257)
Exchange adjustments R CES 3,770 333 - 109 4,493 410 9,115
At 31 March 2011 and RZZ——F
1 April 2011 ZA=t+-Bk
—Z2-——4%MmA—-H 80,928 6,038 993 3,253 60,860 - 152,072
Additions B 20 955 669 1,772 6,952 - 10,368
Exchange adjustments ERAEES 2,897 24 - 86 2,179 - 5,403
At 31 March 2012 R-B-Z=§
=B=+-H 83,845 7,234 1,662 5111 69,991 - 167,843
Accumulated depreciation Eit 7 E R E
and impairment
At 1 April 2010 RZZE-ZEMA—H 24,741 5,705 993 1,537 50,581 - 83,557
Charge for the year imiﬁ 4,798 1,477 - 1,143 13,753 - 21,171
Reclassified to asset BMHEERELE
held for sale ﬁF (1,736) (2,824) - (400) (34,847) - (39,807)
Eliminated on disposals o B 6 - = = (1,155) = = (1,155)
Exchange adjustments R EES 1,087 235 - 21 2,223 - 3,566
At 31 March 2011 and RZT——F
1 April 2011 =A=+-8k
—Z——%MA—H 28,890 4,593 993 1,146 31,710 - 67,332
Charge for the year FAZH 4,593 1,065 33 1,061 7,965 - 14,717
Exchange adjustments ERAEE S 1,034 179 - 35 1,135 - 2,383
At 31 March 2012 R=B-=f
=A=t+-H 34,517 5,837 1,026 2,242 40,810 - 84,432
Carrying amounts BEHE
At 31 March 2012 R=B-=%
=A=t+-H 49,328 1,397 636 2,869 29,181 - 83,411
At 31 March 2011 RZZ——F
=RA=t+—H 52,038 1,445 - 2,107 29,150 - 84,740
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17.

18.

120

ateme

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17.9% -BEKRRZ®E (&)
(CONTINUED)
Note: Bt i -
The Group has pledged building having a carrying amount of A E B K AR M (E 924,215,000 7T
approximately HK$24,215,000 (2011: HK$29,587,000) and plant and (Z&——4:29,587,0008 7)) 2 BF K
machinery having a carrying amount of approximately HK$26,620,000 AR E 1 4926,620,0008 L (Z T ——F:
(2011: HK$9,678,000) to secure bank borrowings granted to the 9,678,000/ 7T ) Z M= Kk i#zs  (EAR T A
Group (for details, please refer to note 29). SEZRTBEZER (BBEFBEHEL28M
5529) °
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. N HEFIE
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: REB 2 BNHEERIERE:
2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: ~ &AM FHE 30 :
Medium term lease FHEIFR A9 4,139 6,249
Reclassified to assets held for sale BENOBERIFLHEEE - (2,1417)
4,139 4,108
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RIFRRE T
Current portion (Note 23) BVER SR 5 (K7 a£23) 116 112
Non-current portion FEBNEREE & 4,023 3,996
4,139 4,108

The Group has pledged land use rights having a carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,139,000 as at 31 March 2012
(2011: HK$4,108,000) to secure bank loans granted to the

Group (for details, please refer to note 29).

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z —F——F=H=+—HIFFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. 8 EE
Technical Exclusive
know-how right Total
EE/EA BRER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT TAT
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZE—FFMAH—H 1,612 - 1,612
Acquisition through 7R W E — [ B
acquisition of a subsidiary NN - 576,334 576,334
Reclassified to assets held for sale FEHDEEHIELE
BE (1,686) - (1,686)
Exchange adjustments e 5 3E B 74 = 74
At 31 March 2011, RZE——F=A
1 April 2011 and =t+—HB ' ZF——F
31 March 2012 MA—BRZ-ZT—Z_F
=A=+—H - 576,334 576,334
Accumulated amortisation and R & # 85 & EE
impairment
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—TFMA—H 1,585 - 1,585
Charge for the year FAXH 28 - 28
Reclassified to assets held for sale FEFH D EEHIELE
BE (1,686) - (1,686)
Exchange adjustments M 5 3 & 73 - 73
At 31 March 2011 and N ZF——
1 April 2011 ZA=+-8FkK
—E——Fm™A—H - - -
Charge for the year FAZH - = =
At 31 March 2012 R=-B-—Z=-f=A
=+—H = = -
Carrying amounts fREE
At 31 March 2012 R=B-—=F
=HA=+—H - 576,334 576,334
At 31 March 2011 BT ——F
=EEB=E—6H - 576,334 576,334
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z—=%F

——#FZ A=+ —AIFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

122

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Technical know-how is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful economic life of five years.

Exclusive right represents the Deed of Statement and Power of
Attorney dated 12 September 2009 and made between PT. Indo
Modern Mining Sejahtera (“Indo”), the holder of the operation
license in the mining are located in Lumajang, East Java,
Indonesia, and PT. Dampar Golden International (“PT. Dampar”),
pursuant to which, Indo grants exclusive rights and authorities
to PT. Dampar to manage and arrange all activities in the mining
area on behalf of Indo.

Exclusive right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful economic life. The useful economic life of the
exclusive rights was estimated with reference to the validity of
the operation license held by Indo. The operation license was
valid for ten years from 21 July 2010 and the holder was entitled
to apply for renewal for two times with a 10-year term each.

No amortization was provided for the year ended 31 March
2012 as the iron ore mining operation has not yet been
commenced during the year.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment of
the end of each reporting period. The Group has completed its
annual impairment test for the exclusive right, no impairment
loss was recognized for the year ended 31 March 2012, as
the recoverable amount exceed the carrying amount. The
recoverable amount of the exclusive right is referenced to
valuation report issued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified valuers, as at 31 March 2012 which the
exclusive right has been measured based on the value in use
calculation.
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BRBRM TR E B F 2 57 R
FHRNREREEH-

B X #FI3EPT. Indo Modern Mining
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PREEETZABES -

BRENDREMGET A REEFHA
NEOREE - BN 2 A&
FHTI2Z A Indofr 54L& 7F Al 78
BREMET A -REFAEBZE
MR T —TF+ A= +—Etﬂ
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZ_—F—_—F=H=+—HIFF

20. MINING RIGHTS 20. BRI
HK$'000
FHEIT
Cost 29N
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011, RZE—ZEFWHA—H ZF——%F
1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 =A=+—RH —F2——FMmWA—H
MZ_ZT——F=A=+—H 260,015
Accumulated amortisation and impairment AT #EREE
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZEFNMA—H -
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (10,415)
At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 R=ZF——F=A=+—A80Kk
—E——FMA—H (10,415)
Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE (66,167)
At 31 March 2012 R—E——F=H=+—H (76,582)
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2012 R=ZZB-—Z—f=H=+—H 183,433

At 31 March 2011 R-—ZE——F=H=+—H 249,600

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining
activities in Tumurtei, Khuder Soum, Selenge Aimag, Mongolia.

The mining right is amortised using the unit-of-production
method based on the total proven and probable mineral
reserves, under the assumption that the Group can renew the
mining right for two successive additional periods of 20 years
each after the initial granted period of 30 years, till all proven

and probable mineral reserves have been mined.

No amortisation was provided for the year ended 31 March
2012 (2011: Nil) as commercial production of the mine has not
yet commenced during the year.

HEEREIEES B Tumurtei * Khuder
Soum ’ Selenge Aimagi# T EAE /R &) 2
RER

PRUEHE T B0 AN B A R 1] 2 K30
FHREEEBMREEEIN20FH
RREEEEZHCRBRATEEE
RECRRZER RESHKARAE
BEARENEERMRETHE

PR 4F PO ST R A T 7 8
BE-S--F=A=t—-ALER
I EEHRIES (ST ——F ) -
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20. MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. The Group has completed its
annual impairment test for the mining right by comparing the
recoverable amount of the mining right to its carrying amount
as at 31 March 2012. Impairment loss in respect of mining
right of approximately HK$66,167,000 (2011: HK$10,415,000)
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2012 by
reference to the valuation report issued by LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyor Limited, independently qualified professional valuers,
as at 31 March 2012 which the mining right has been
measured by the value in use calculation. Impairment loss
recognised is due to the delay of its business plan related to
the mining right.

ateme

20. BRAIEHE (&)

REBARSRE BRI EERBE
FR-AEEEERGRBEEN_-F
——ZF=ZA=t+—HzuUkEsESR
HEABEETEERMTKEFEEZ
FEREIR RBEE-_T——F=58
=+—RHIEFE BRREEERE
E5184966,167,0008 L (ZF—— 4 :
10,415,000 7T) - 2 ZBILA B
BEGEMABEITRZMAR QAR
T —F=-A=+—B%IZMHE
HETE - MEEEDREREENE
FEFE EHRZAEBREIIERS
RAERE I 2 E TGt BB TS -

21.INVENTORIES 21. 78
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Raw materials R 4,269 1,959
Packaging materials and consumables 8% ¥% & 5 # & 4,887 2,820
Finished goods 2K i 5,898 9,602
15,054 14,381

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group has not
written off obsolete finished goods (2011: Nil).

1 2 4 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 2. BESRUWRF R EWERE
2012 2011
—B-—% —B——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables E SRR 56,911 56,684
Less: accumulated impairment B BEHRVE (15,256) (13,010)
41,655 43,674

Bills receivables discounted/endorsed — KiiE =4 7 BhIR &2
with recourse U i 4,033 6,362
45,688 50,036

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally settled within 180 days of issuance, except for
certain well established customers. The following is an aging
analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment losses, and bills
receivable discounted/endorsed with recourse at the end of the
reporting period:

REETEREERNF -BRETERAR
FZBEEN —REEBEREREZ
180B AEEBRZE - NREHRAERZE S

P& st B X

(MR ERBER) MHER

BZHBR /BERKREBREZREDN

lzDT:

2012 2011

=®F-=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

0 to 90 days 0£90H 23,626 30,080
91 to 180 days 91£180H 10,983 10,046
181 to 365 days 181£365H 9,358 9,635
1 to 2 years 1224 1,721 275
45,688 50,036
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BE—_FT——F=-A=1—HIFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and credit quality attributed to customers are
reviewed periodically. At 31 March 2012, approximately 76%
(2011: 80%) of the trade receivables are neither past due nor
impaired, and are assessed to be of satisfactory credit quality
with reference to the past track records.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$11,079,000 (2011: HK$9,910,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The amounts are mainly comprised amounts
due from certain well established customers, which the Group
normally grants an extension to them. The Group does not
hold any collateral over theses balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

ateme

22.

B3 R RS

REMEAAEFR AEE ST -HE
BEFEFZEEER WEEREFZEER
B BXPEATCREREEERERE
g -RZE——F=A=+—8"
ESREWERNT6% (T ——F:
80% ) I AR HR IR R R (B - WARIRTE A
B AEREREZEERER

AEBEBSRPEREHRBIFLED
BEA#11,079,0008 T (ZF——4F:
9,910,000/ L) H R4 A HIE | 8
R 7R 6 B [ R B UL 1E R E S 1B B R
ZEWER ZERBEERERKSE
TFARIBEBER (FAEE—BETR
EERM)ZAB-AEBVEHRZE
EHRFE T AEE R -

CEEBERREZESERERRE
R

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
181 to 365 days 1812365H 9,358 9,635
1 to 2 years 1226 1,721 275
11,079 9,910
Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Movement in the provision for impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade receivables

2. B 5 RUERR R EINRE

(%)

5 MR > B R E A R
BB

2012 2011

—E——fF —FT—%

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHT

Balance at beginning of the year REY 2 &84 13,010 19,141

Impairment losses recognised on B RN E#R

trade receivables VRN k=] 3,060 3,292
Impairment losses reversed VEREY Ei=EE{E (1,298) (5,509)
Reclassified to assets held for sale BENOoBEHELHESE - (4,705)
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 B 484 791
Balance at end of the year RERZ &8 15,256 13,010

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. Included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are all individually impaired trade receivables
which have either been placed under liquidation or in severe
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group has
recovered trade receivables of approximately HK$1,298,000
(2011: HK$5,509,000) which has been impaired in previous
years.

REETE B 5 YR 30 2 AT Y [m 1 B - A<
SEEEEANIRTEEE BER
EREHRANEZRUERRZEME
EEREY RERBEERENFRE
BEBEMBEREZAEERNDRE
B 5 R AR N - AN R B B B % T M R
FrATMERm-

REBE_ZT——F=ZA=+—HItHF
BN AEEBKRERBAEFEERE
2B 5 AR 5 491,298,000 7T (=
T ——4:5,509,000/% L) °
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22.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. ESEWBRA KR EWELE
(CONTINUED) (%)
Aging of impaired trade receivables 2R EE 2 B W RN RR
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT
1 to 2 years 1824 15,256 13,010
Transfer of financial assets BEUWKEE

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s bills receivables of
approximately HK$4,033,000 (2011: HK$6,362,000) had
been transferred to unrelated suppliers with recourse. As the
Group is still exposed to credit risk on these bills receivable,
the Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount of
the bills receivable and record associated trade payables of
approximately HK$4,033,000 (2011: HK$6,362,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. AN FIE - e R MR

L B K

2012 2011
—B--F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Amount receivable on disposal of JE Wt Bt i R B FRIE

an associate (note) (Biat) - 67,000
Deposits paid BEfES 424 664
Prepayments T IR 4,542 8,193
Other receivables E{ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ(ﬂ%?ﬂ 1,794 4,593
Prepaid lease payments (note 18) T EERIE (A2 18) 116 112
6,876 80,562

Note: Wit

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group has disposed of the
interest in associates for a total consideration of HK$180,000,000. The
amount was the remaining part of receivable form the acquirer. During
the year ended 31 March 2012, amount of HK$3,000,000 (2011:
HK$15,000,000) was settled. As the Group has negotiated with the
debtor for a long period of time and the amount was still outstanding,
the directors considered to make provision for impairment loss of
approximately HK$64,000,000 during the year ended 31 March 2012.

REBEE=ZZTZNF=ZA=+—RHILFE
AEEDHERBE QR ZER  BREAR
180,000,000 JT o L il & %8 T3 F& W W B8 5
ZBRBR-RNEE-_T——F=F=+—H
IFEE A 3,000,000 (8 ——4:
15,000,000/ ) B EAE AR AKE
EREHFARMAED BB RES
B HEERARERBE=_Z—=—F=F7
=+—HBIEFEZREEE 64,000,000
TCE H AR -
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24 BERZAFEARZE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS KEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong R &t Z A

at quoted bid price BHRWmE 741 728
BANK BALANCES AND CASH/ 25 SRITHEBRRIRE T

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less and carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.45% (2011: 0.72%) per annum during the year.

Included in the bank balances and cash as at 31 March
2012 were amounts in Renminbi of HK$10,743,000 (2011:
HK$26,095,000) which are not freely convertible into other
currencies.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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26.ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 26 P EABIEHEEE

SALE

On 18 March 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to sell the entire issued share capital of
Bright Central Investments Limited (“Bright Central”) and its
subsidiaries at a consideration of HK$30,000,000. The disposal
of Bright Central was completed on 16 May 2011. The major
classes of assets and liabilities comprising the assets classified

as held for sale at the end of the reporting period are as

—E2-——F=ZA+N\B -A&EEF]
—fn B & & A % 1L (30,000,000
7&7Eﬁ%8r|ght Central Investments
Limited ([Bright Central ] ) K H [ B
NAlZ 2B FEITRA - H EBright
CentalBE R =_FE——FHA+H=
KoM EHREERBE (BESE

H%

follows: RFEFELEEE) ZEEHMNNOT:
2011
HK$ 000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment - BEREE 45,450
Prepaid lease payment TEN & HRIE 2,141
Deposit made an acquisition of property, WEME BEREEB RS
plant and equipment 5,544
Inventories FE 10,245
Accounts receivable & W SR IE 15,795
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables T RIE - R K H e Y AR K 18,233
Pledged bank deposits B EITER 1,820
Cash and bank balances B & RIR1T4 1,444
Assets of the disposal group classified DERFBELHEZHERECEE
as held for sale 100,672
Trade payables B S EMERR (15,842)
Other payables and accruals Efh eI N ERTE R (13,299)
Bank borrowings RITEE (51,485)
Liabilities of disposal group associated with assets ERDIEAFIEHEEEHRE
classified as held for sale HEEEZAE 80,626
Net assets of the disposal group classified PERFBELECHESEZEEFEE
as held for sale 20,046
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27.TRADE PAYABLES

132

27. B Z B ERRX

2012 2011

B —T——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FHT

Trade payables B 5 ENRR 9,330 13,709

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end

RBERRZE H RN RRRER DN

of the reporting period: mR
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 6,282 8,997
91 to 180 days 91£180H 274 2,934
181 to 365 days 1812365H 775 625
Over 365 days HBiE365H 1,999 1,153
9,330 13,709

The average credit period on purchases is 3 months (2011: 3

months).

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
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28.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29.
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28. H BV BRFA N BT E M

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAIT
Value-added tax payable JE {1 38 (B 5 3K 188 1,404
Accruals fEET & 1,330 4,727
Deposit received for disposal of REEMBRARKR ZIZS
subsidiaries - 18,000
Other payables H A FE - AR K 5,289 4,588
6,807 28,719
/= [t 2
BANK BORROWINGS 29.8R1TEE
2012 2011
—E—_F T ——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Bank borrowings RITEBE
— secured — 5K 59,048 45,130
— unsecured — - 23,753
59,048 68,883
The borrowings are repayable as BEEZEZBL T
follows:
Within one year —F PR 59,048 68,883
In the second year MEZFNR = =
59,048 68,883
Less: Amount due for settlement W BERT @A AR BERE
within 12 months (shown 2o (2R REBARE
under current liabilities) ") 59,048 (68,883)
Amount due for settlement 5+ —{& A 1% 2| &
after 12 months HEE® - =
Bank borrowings at: ETAEAERGEZ
RITEE:
— floating interest rates — FEA =X 59,048 68,883
— fixed interest rates — [& & F & - -
59,048 68,883
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29.BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 29.8R1716 8 (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are all AEBRITERZEABEBHUARE
denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of the FHE MARBMAEEERE 2NEE
group entities. o
The contractual fixed and floating interest rates in respect of RITERZEHNEE RIZFEFEE L
bank loans were within the following ranges: TEE A
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
Bank borrowings RITEHE 6.9 -7.9% 5.6% - 6.4%
30.SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREA -]
Authorised: ETERRA
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012, R=-ZE——FWMA—HE=Z
ordinary of HK$0.05 each ——F#=ZA=+—8 &Kk
EE0.058 7T 2 L iaK 10,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBRRA:
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZFMA—H 2,030,600,590 101,530
Open offer NHAEE 1,015,300,295 50,765
Conversion of convertible notes IR ORI E R 652,844,873 32,642

At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 R=ZZE—F=A=+—8BK

—E——4FH—H 3,698,745,758 184,937
Conversion of convertible notes IR AT AR IR 180,000,000 9,000
At 31 March 2012 R-_E——F=H=+—H 3,878,745,758 193,937

1 3 4 Asia Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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30.SHARE CAPITAL(CONTINUED)

31.

Notes:

(i) On 30 April 2010, the Company has issued 1,015,300,295
ordinary shares pursuant to the open offer on the basis of one
offer share for every two shares held on the record date at a
subscription price of HK$0.13 per offer share. The ordinary
shares were issued for the purpose of increasing general
working capital for the Group. The new shares rank pari passu
with the existing share in all respects.

(i) On 18 October 2010, 15 December 2010 and 6 July 2011,
the holders of the convertible notes converted convertible
notes of approximately HK$110,447,000, HK$11,178,000 and
HK$33,534,000 respectively into 592,844,873, 60,000,000
and 180,000,000 ordinary shares at a conversion price of
HK$0.1863.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 29 September 2010, the Company issued convertible
notes due on 28 September 2017 with a principal amount of
HK$546,750,000, which is interest free. The convertible notes
were issued as part of the consideration for acquisition of
PT. Dampar. The convertible notes contain two components,
liability and equity elements, and are convertible into fully
paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.05 each of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.1863
per share, subject to adjustment. The effective interest
rate is approximately 9.84%. The convertible notes are not

redeemable by the note holder(s) or the Company.

30. x2S ()

Brat

iy WN=ZT-—FF IT_EIH +TH AR
RIBAFREE E%Flﬁx%*’%l&
1’7}0.13%71&5@.53%5%%%@&
R — R E R 2 EEET
1,015,300,2950% & 3B AL - 317 EBAR
EEENAEEZ —REEES -
BROBRERMNESHEZHEREFH

fiL

(i RZZTE—ZTF+A+NR-ZFT—
TF+_A+TREBRER=Z——F+
ANB AIMBREERFE ARERE
0.18634 7T 9 Bl # £9110,447,0007%
7T~ 11,178,000 7T K% 33,534,000/%
EZTT‘%H = & ¥ 1 5592,844,873
Ji% -~ 60,000,000/% X.180,000,000% &
HhR -

31. A A IR E 15

E”>

—ZTFEAAZTNAB -EARQA
%ééﬁmﬁ%féi%we 750,0007% 7T+ I 1%
—E—tFhAZtNREHBZzRE
AR EE - BT RREERIERWE
PT. DamparX {8 2 —3F {7 ° T?ﬁ%ﬂ&%‘%ﬁfx
BEMIBGH - NaBERERDH I
BT EBREERRHO. 1863/%7E(—I
THRE)EBRANAASFREEC.0SH
BB EBR -ERMNEDNAR
9.84% - AR EBTAIREEFTAE A
AR A fE A
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)
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The movement of the liability component of the convertible

notes for the year is set out below.

31. A/ R EE (58)

R THRRER S B2 2B
T

HK$'000

T T

At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZFMA—H -
Initial recognition TR 283,370
Interest charged AEZH 11,364
Converted into shares during the year F AR RGN (60,894)
Fair value changes NEEEEH (3,860)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=A=+—H 229,980
Interest charged FMEZH 22,128
Converted into shares during the year FRBEB R (18,527)
Fair value changes NEEED) (27,371)
At 31 March 2012 —E——_#=ZRF=+—H 206,210

The fair value of the convertible notes issued has been arrived

on the basis of a valuation carried out on the date of issue by

Norton Appraisal Limited, independent professional valuers not

connect with the Group. The effective interest rate are in the
range of 9.91% to 12.37% (2011: 9.84% to 10.69%).
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32. ACQUISITION OF INTANGIBLE ASSET

AND OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 23 October 2009, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement and supplemental agreements to
acquire 55% of the entire issued share capital in PT. Dampar
at a consideration of HK$577,500,000. The main asset of PT.
Dampar is the exclusive right to manage, refine and sell the
iron sand at the mining area held by a minority shareholder, PT.
Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera. The consideration was satisfied
by (i) HK$30,750,000 in cash and (ii) HK$546,750,000 by the
Company's issue to Empire Bridge Assets Limited of convertible

notes. The acquisition was completed on 29 September 2010.

PT. Dampar has not carried out any significant business
transactions since their incorporation. In the opinion of the
directors, the acquisition did not constitute an acquisition of
business which the Group principally acquired the mining right
through the acquisition. Therefore, the acquisition was not
accounted for as a business combination in accordance with

the requirements of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.

Instead of considering the fair value of the assets and liabilities
acquired, the directors of the Company considered that
the reliable to apply fair value of consideration paid, and
determined in accordance with HKFRS2 Share-based Payment
to account for the acquisition of the identifiable assets and

liabilities.

32. ZB WK BN 7 W EEE

AN
FEERHMWEEURE

&

R-ZZAFE+A-+=8 AEEF]
VERHEEEREIAETHE  AER
{8577,500,000/% st Y BEPT. Dampar®
EE BT A 255% ° PT. DamparZ
FTELEEABREE RBEREHEEMR
B— R LEEZKEPT Indo Modern
Mining SejahteraFT#% 2 S/ HE @ # B 1)
ZHER] - KB E BA)EE £30,750,0007%
TER(NARRMERBER A A ETIH®
P& = 546,750,000/ 7T 2 77 R (E
WEERZZE—ZTFNLAZTLAZE
bjzo

PT. Dampar B H 5 5 37 DA SR S 1T
FAEREERZ - EFRA ZWHE
A B N 52 (5 4R 5 M X B B A
TR —THWEER Bl RIBEEE
MR ELENEIREFSHF2HRE
ZWELEER—BEBEHARK-

EEZRR ERREFEVMBRSER
FLRURODBERZIHAEE 2N
REZRAFEAKRAIRNEERAE
ZWBRALDES - IEEEHTKE
BENRBBEZRAFE

EMETRIZERBR AR
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32. ACQUISITION OF INTANGIBLE ASSET
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

138

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired

F=A=1—HIFE

%(%)

32. B IWBIE L = WBA
WEERAMEENURE

REXZTFBAZABBEERBEZ

in the transaction are as follows: NEEDAT
2011
—E——1F
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: EWBEEEFRE:
Property, plant and equipment mE BB RZE 15
Intangible assets mREE 576,334
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE R 369
Amount due to non-controlling interest FE {5 FE4E IR 25 5B (1,778)
Fair value of net assets EEFBEZAFE 574,940
55% of the entire equity interest in PT. Dampar  PT. DamparZ &8 2 55% 316,217
Satisfied by: X1t
Cash BHe 30,750
Convertible notes, at fair value (note 20) WAFEZBRZR (f1:£20) 283,370
Acquisition-related costs Uy B8 8 B8 Ak A 2,097
316,217
Net assets acquired: Tz EEFRE
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (30,750)
Cash and bank balances acquired Frik g 2 38 & RIR1T 4 8% 369
(30,381)

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2011, no turnover and loss was
contributed by PT. Dampar as it has not carried out any significant

business transaction since the acquisition.
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33.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 March 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire interest
in Bright Central Investments Limited (the “Disposal”) at a
consideration of HK$30,000,000, which shall be satisfied in
cash. The Disposal was completed on 16 May 2011.

The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities disposed of in

the transaction are as follows:

33. HEME 2 T

RZZE——F=A+NAB XEH
Y AERGEEHEUAERE
30,000,000 T (AU RS X ) HE
Bright Central Investments Limited 2 &
HEm([HEEE]) HEFHEHER
—E——FRAFT S HEK-

RRShptE > EERABEEDE
AR

HK$'000
FHT
Net assets disposed of: FtEZEEFE:

Property, plant and equipment Y% B K 45,912
Prepaid lease payment TEfT & 5KI8 2,108

Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and WENE BERRE2EE
equipment 5,578
Inventories e~ 15,778
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R 3 N e I ZE AR 14,040
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENFRIE e hE i EUER R 40,450
Bank balances and cash SRITHESBRNIRS® 6,124
Trade and bills payables BORNERRIENEER (17,237)
Other payables and accruals H fth J& A 3R I8 K 5T B A (40,368)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (53,471)
18,914
Release of translation reserve B[O P& W R (5,485)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRRZ K 16,571
Total consideration, satisfies by cash NIRe Tz BKRE 30,000

Net cash inflow arising on the disposal: HEEEZRERAFE:

Cash consideration RERE 30,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of Tt EZRTEBRIES (6,124)
23,876
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34.

140

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share options scheme adopted on 14 January
2002 (the "Old Share Option Scheme”) for the purposes of
recognition of significant contribution of and for the provision
of incentives to any directors, employees (whether full-time or
part-time), consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners
or advisors of or contractors to the Group or affiliates (“Eligible
Persons”). On 12 July 2011, the Company had granted
140,500,000 share options to directors, employees and other
affiliates under the Old Share Option Scheme.

The Old Share Option Scheme has been terminated on 9
August 2011 and a share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9 August
2011.

The New Share Option Scheme is adopted for the same
purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme.

Under the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may for a notional consideration
of HK$1 grant options to the Eligible Persons to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a price no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
of the option (which must be a business day); (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option. Options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme must be taken up within
28 business days from the date on which the offer is made
by returning a written acceptance of the offer signed by the
Eligible Persons together with the payment of HK$1 per option
(the “Acceptance Conditions”). Options granted and accepted
may be exercised at any time for 10 years commencing on the
date on which an option is accepted in accordance with the
Acceptance Conditions under the New Share Option Scheme
(the "Option Period”). Options granted under the Scheme will
be exercisable in the Option Period notwithstanding that the
scheme period of the New Share Option Scheme may have
expired. The New Share Option Scheme does not prescribe any
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised and has not specified that the exercise of an
option is subject to any performance target.
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34.SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme cannot exceed 10% (the “Limit”) of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme, excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme

and any other share option schemes.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible Persons if the
exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised options
and shares already issued under all previous option granted,
would in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant enable that relevant Eligible Person to have
shares exceeding 1% of the issued shares of the Company for
the time being unless separate approval by the shareholders in

general meeting is obtained.

34. B e (48)

REFEREFESR L ZAEBK
RETEREAZETZENDHERSZ T
Al BB AR AN BR AT R A 8
HEZTRAZ10% (T2EREHE
P R 5T &Y B AT fr) B A B AR RE 5 &1 2 {5
RERBZEABEBRE) (TER]) -

RABETE R AR AT H A BB A AT 2l
B ZFARARITEZ BRELEEITE
A TEITZBRNEE BZEHTE
FRIB N B BTN B E230% © MR
BEERBREZE—TIERTZABRZI2
AR BREEmITE 2 ERE (REE
M RITECERERBEMERBE
BREZEBREMBITZRG)EHEHA
BEBATHBARAERZE BT
BOEBB1% MERES TSR TE
AaBB AT BRIFEXNBRREAE LR
BREERE B ITHEE - BB BISb o
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2012, the number of shares in respect of which
share options granted and remained outstanding under the
Old Share Scheme was 140,500,000, representing 3.6% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the reporting date

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

34. 1B IR 7 (48)

R-ZT——F=A=+—8 niREE
BE AR REAT B R b R AT 2 B AR
2 D88 A140,500,000 © {5 AN A A
RE BB BITRN Z3.6% °

ERTERRBREZHBET:

Number of share option

BREHA
Closing
price of the Outstanding
Exercisable Fair Company's Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled at
Date of Exercisable pricc  valueat  shareat  at 1 April during during during during 31 March
Grant period per share grant date grant date 201 the year the year the year the year 2012
R®
® —E-CF
ARARGE =B--%F =B
RELEH RRWAHE HEA-H RER RER RER  =t+-AH
REAH g BROEE 2ATE 2ZURE  HAGR REARE i 3 H¥H  HATR
HK$ HK$ HK$
b BT BT
Category 1:
Rl
Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 0.0578 0.071 - 84,500,000 - - - 84,500,000
22 July 2021
B2 “Z——-% %
tA+=H tA+t=RZE
—E--&
tAZt+z=H
Category 2:
=
Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 0.0578 0.071 - 24,000,000 - - - 24,000,000
22 July 2021
E8 B -2
tA+ZB  tA+ZBZE
it -3
tAZt+z=H
Category 3:
BhI=:
Other 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 0.071 0.0578 0.071 - 32,000,000 - - - 32,000,000
affiliates 22 July 2021
EHBAR —T——F -“3——F
tA+=B tAt=RHZE
—E--F
tA=t=H
Total all
categories
FiE BRIEE - 140,500,000 - - - 140,500,000
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34.SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 34. 1B IR (78)
The fair value of the share options granted during the RBEHRAREERE 2 X FETE
reporting period were priced using the Trinomial model. The A=EAREEREAEE ZEAZ
inputs into the model were as follow: WAELT :

Share option type
Old Share Option Scheme

BREEEEBERESE
Grant date share price K HEBRE HK$0.071/8 7T
Exercise price T1E(E HK$0.07178 7T
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18 78.743%
Expected option life T8 HA B P e 45 A 10 years4
Dividend yield IR B = 0%
Risk-free interest rate 17 3 f R =X 2.796%
35.RESERVES 35. f# &
Details of the movements of the Group's reserves are set out in REBREZEDFBEHNFLTRL8E
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 47 EREREREEE -
and 48.
36.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. S AR
The Group as lessee TEBEFEREABEA
2012 2011
—E-—C—fF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT T
Within one year —F LA 793 960
In the second year RE-FER 1,177 =
1,970 960
A lease is negotiated for remaining 2 years and rentals are HMAZEER_-_F MEHRzZESE
fixed throughout the lease term. F o

TEMERERBR AT
—E-CFFY
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37.

38.
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BE—_FT——FE=-HA=1—HIFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any capital commitment at 31 March
2012 (2011: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group's qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in
the Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustee. The Group and each of
the employees make monthly mandatory contributions to the
MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of HK$3,403,000 (2011:
HK$3,161,000) represents contributions payable to these plans
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
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39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
details of transactions between the Group and other related
parties are disclosed below.

39.FAEANLER S

RAGIEEMBAR (KREDARRZ
BEALIRZXZERGARIEH
BIWERAAKTERE -BRZERETH
BREMEMPAREESIN  REBFEE
WEBEBALTHZRZHBRENT -

Transactions X5
During the year, group entities entered into the following FRN EEEBERKUATHEEALTR
related party transactions: 2
2012 2011
—B——f —E——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FHT
Management service income received UWER —fEHREIE R F 2
from a related company B 1R AR 5 A 172 301
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEAE ZRM

The remuneration of key management personnel during the
year was as follows:

TEEBEABRFARAZEHEMET :

2012 2011

L B —T——4

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Short-term benefits ?EHH?E%U 1,211 931
Retirement benefit contribution EREF T3

scheme 41 12

1,252 943
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40.SUBSIDIARIES 40.ffB A &

146

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly

owned by the Company, at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

RZBE-—ZF=A=+—RH ARAZ
MBAREOAARAZERER HiFE

mE
Nominal value
of issued Proportion
Place of and fully ownership
incorporation or paid share/ interest
establishment/ registered held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activity
AR, ERTRBE FRARAKHEZ
BB 2 B £ B R i B RAEE ZMES FEEESLH FTBEH
China Value Assets Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Investment holding
(note a) (Kiita) REBREXHES 1% REER
Merit Development Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Investment holding
(note a) (#fita) RBRLHEE 1%7T REZER
Bestime Systems Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Investment holding
EBERHE 1%7T REZER
Billion Source Investments British Virgin Islands Us$2 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRAHE 2%ETT REZER
Infinite Nature Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Investment holding
EBERHE 1%7T REZER
Man Lee Management Hong Kong HK$2 100%  Management services
Limited Bt 28T BERY
Silver Epoch Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBERHE 1%7T REZER
Value Brilliant Investments British Virgin Islands US$30,000 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRLHE 30,000% 7T REZER
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40.SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2012

40. KT B~ |

Nominal value

or & B T R R B R

E-F-—F=A=+—AULFE

(%)

of issued Proportion
Place of and fully ownership
incorporation or paid share/ interest
establishment/ registered held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activity
AV ERTRHAE A2AEFEEZ
MEARER R 1t B BAEE SMERN FAEEEZLH FTEEH
MFEaEEBRAR PRC RMB55,350,000 100%  Manufacture and sales
(Siping Ju Neng Medicine of pharmaceutical
Industry Co., Ltd.) (note b) Products
MEEREXERAA] i E AR #55,350,0007T FUERHE Em
(Htetb)
Tian Sheng Resources British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100%  Investment holding
Development Limited
AERERFAEEARAA KBRS 50,0003 7T ®EER
Khuderbold LLC Mongolia US$100,000 100%  Exploration of iron ore
5 100,000 7T BRI TR
Mighty Kingdom Investments  British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Dormant
Limited (note d) (#fitd) HBREZHS 1£7T TR
PT. Dampar Golden Indonesia USD 250,000 55%  Trading of iron sand
International EfE 250,000 7T BEEHEY
Notes: H1aE -

(@)  The subsidiaries are directly held by the Company.

(b)  The subsidiary was a wholly foreign owned enterprises

established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

(@) ZEMBRABMARTEERFH-
ZHMBAR AN EKZINEEE
®E-

REREFENTAER - B A B3 E
ERAIREEZEHES -
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41.SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF

41. R R B Z AR R E R

FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION BE
OF THE COMPANY
Summarised statement of financial position information of the RARBRMERAR M BHRAERER
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: HERIE:
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Interests in subsidiaries SN £ 389,870 389,870
Prepayments, deposits and FEMER e REMER
other receivables 8RR 100 261
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B /BB R Bl ZRIA 203,610 188,268
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 70,243 73,971
663,823 652,370
Amount due to subsidiaries AN NGIE S (17,359) =
Other payables and accruals HEtE R R ETE R (1,162) (1,179)
Convertible notes ] ¥ % 2 1 (206,210) (229,980)
Net assets BEFE 439,092 421,211
Share capital (note 30) B (K7 #£30) 193,937 184,937
Reserves i 245,155 236,274
Total equity WS EE 439,092 421,211

Loss of the Company for current year amounted to
approximately HK$8,767,000 (2011: loss of HK$11,693,000).
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41.SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

—F=ZA=1—HIFE

41. KA agﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁfﬂ

Share
Share Share option Translation Special  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
& R4 & E BRERE ERGHE RhIGE 2 ER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET THET THET FTHET
At 1 April 2010 RZE-SFNA—H 101,530 623,441 - 27 180,030 (660,875) 244,153
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (11,693) (11,693)
Other comprehensive AFEEEMREER
loss for the year - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive AFEHZEEBR
loss for the year - - - - - (11,693) (11,693)
Open offer NGk 50,765 81,224 = = = - 131,989
Expenses incurred in BERARREZ
connection with the issue BAEEZRAX
of open offer - (3,942) - - - - (3,942)
Conversion of convertible BRTARRERRD
notes into shares 32,642 28,252 - - - - 60,894
Expenses incurred in FREBRTHRRRE
conversion of convertible EEZRAX
notes - (190) - - - - (190)
At 31 March 2011 and WZT——F
1 April 2011 ZA=+-BEk
—Z—4%mA—-~A 184,937 728,785 - 27 180,030 (672,568) 421,211
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (8,767) (8,767)
Other comprehensive loss AEEEMREER
for the year - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss AEEHEZHEE
for the year - - - - - (8,767) (8,767)
Conversion of convertible BRATARRERRG
notes into shares 9,000 9,527 - - - - 18,527
Share-based payment PARR A R ERE 2 R F R X
expenses - - 8,121 - - - 8,121
At 31 March 2012 R-B-=F
=R=t+-H 193,937 738,312 8,121 27 180,030 (681,335) 439,092
2o M &R IERR B R A A
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42.

43.

44.
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BE—_F——

F=A=+—FIFE

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at
as 31 March 2012.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

According to the Company dated 14 December 2007 in
relation to disposal of 30% of the entire issued share capital
of Skyyield Holdings Limited by Bestime Systems Limited (the
“1st Plaintiff”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
to Zhou Yu Kang (the “1st Defendant”) for the consideration
of HK$180,000,000 pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 12 December 2007 (the “Agreement”). As
at the date 18 April 2012, the 1st Defendant remains failed to
pay an outstanding balance in the amount (the “Outstanding
Amount”) of HK$63,999,751 to the 1st Plaintiff.

A writ of summons (the “"Writ”) has been issued at the
High Court Of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on
16 April 2012 by the 1st Plaintiff and the Company as the
second plaintiff, against the 1st Defendant and China Culture
& Tourism Investments Limited as the second defendant (the
“2nd Defendant”).
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EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

The 1st Plaintiff claims against the 1st Defendant for the
Outstanding Amount pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Agreement. The Company claims against the 2nd
Defendant for a dishonoured cheque in the amount of
HK$35,000,000 being part payment of the Outstanding
Amount issued by the 2nd Defendant on behalf of the 1st
Defendant, made payable to the Company at the direction of
the 1st Plaintiff.

Details of above information were set out in the Company
announcement date on 18 April 2012.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group has entered
the following non-cash investing activities which are not
reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

o the Group has disposed the entire interest in Bright
Central (details please refer to note 33), consideration
of HK$18,000,000 out of total consideration of
HK$30,000,000 has been received in the previous year;

o the Group has acquired property, plant and equipment
which has been settled by the deposit paid in previous
year of approximately HK$5,427,000.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 June
2012.
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Financial summary

M=
Year ended 31 March B Z=A=+—HILFE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“EENF —FTNF —FT-FTF —T—F S
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FAT FAET FET FHE T
Results E
Revenue A 170,445 167,718 135,320 157,929 113,586
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATREF, (EE) 66,586 (19,030) (70,343) (45,269)  (155,374)
Tax credit/(charge) BmEE R, () (1,204) (2,094) 63 - (202)
Profit/(loss) for the year ANFEE&F| (BE) 65,382 (21,124) (70,280) (45,269)  (155,576)
Attributable to: FEAh
Equity holders of the ZAYNECIE: ERES TS DN
Company 65,382 (21,124) (70,280) (45,061)  (154,276)
Minority interests DE R RS - - - (208) (1,300)
65,382 (21,124) (70,280) (45,269)  (155,576)
As at 31 March R=FA=+—H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENFE ZETNEF Z2—FTF ZFT—— —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAIT TA&T TFH&ET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEBE 570,280 500,053 694,403 1,267,800 998,681
Total liabilities B EBE (196,332)  (148,499)  (256,150)  (421,917)  (282,855)
Shareholders’ funds fERE & 373,948 351,554 438,253 586,842 458,085

1562
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